Annual Report of CNH CAPITAL LLC For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2011

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements	i
Business	1
Risk Factors	5
Properties	12
Legal Proceedings	12
Mine Safety Disclosures	12
Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholders Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities	12
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	13
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	23
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data	23
Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosures	23
Controls and Procedures	23
Other Information	24
Principal Accountant Fees and Services	24
Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules	25

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

All statements other than statements of historical fact contained in this annual report, including statements regarding our competitive strengths; business strategy; future financial position or operating results; budgets; projections with respect to revenue, income, capital expenditures, capital structure or other financial items; costs; and plans and objectives of management regarding operations, products and services, are forward-looking statements. These statements may include terminology such as "may," "will," "expect," "could," "should," "intend," "estimate," "anticipate," "believe," "outlook," "continue," "remain," "on track," "design," "target," "objective," "goal," or similar terminology.

Our outlook is predominantly based on our interpretation of what we consider to be key economic assumptions and involves risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ (possibly materially) from such forward-looking statements. Macro-economic factors including monetary policy, interest rates, currency exchange rates, inflation, deflation, credit availability and government intervention in an attempt to influence such factors may have a material impact on our customers and the demand for our services. The demand for CNH's products and, in turn, our products and services is influenced by a number of factors, including, among other things: general economic conditions; demand for food; commodity prices, raw material and component prices and stock levels; net farm income levels; availability of credit; developments in biofuels; infrastructure spending rates; housing starts; commercial construction; seasonality of demand; changes and uncertainties in the monetary and fiscal policies of various governmental and regulatory entities; the ability to maintain key dealer relationships; currency exchange rates and interest rates; pricing policies by CNH or its competitors; political, economic and legislative changes; and the other risks described in "Risk Factors." Some of the other significant factors which may affect our results include our access to credit, restrictive covenants in our debt agreements, actions by rating agencies concerning the ratings on our debt and asset-backed securities and the credit ratings of CNH Global and Fiat Industrial, risks related to our relationship with Fiat Industrial, weather, climate change and natural disasters, actions taken by our competitors, the effect of changes in laws and regulations, the results of legal proceedings and employee relations.

Furthermore, in light of recent difficult economic conditions, both globally and in the industries in which we operate, it is particularly difficult to forecast our results and any estimates or forecasts of particular periods that we provide are uncertain. We can give no assurance that the expectations reflected in our forward-looking statements will prove to be correct. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements. All written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to us are expressly qualified in their entirety by the factors we disclose that could cause our actual results to differ materially from our expectations. We undertake no obligation to update or revise publicly any forward-looking statements.

BUSINESS

Overview

CNH Capital LLC and its wholly owned operating subsidiaries, including New Holland Credit Company, LLC, CNH Capital America LLC and CNH Capital Canada Ltd. (CNH Capital LLC together with its consolidated subsidiaries, "CNH Capital" or the "Company"), are each a wholly owned subsidiary of CNH America LLC ("CNH America"), which is an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of CNH Global N.V. ("CNH Global" and, together with its consolidated subsidiaries, "CNH"). CNH Global is incorporated in and under the laws of The Netherlands.

As of December 31, 2011, Fiat Industrial S.p.A. ("Fiat Industrial" and, together with its subsidiaries, the "Fiat Industrial Group") owned approximately 88% of the outstanding common shares of CNH Global through its whollyowned subsidiary, Fiat Netherlands Holding B.V. ("Fiat Netherlands"). Fiat Industrial is a corporation organized under the laws of the Republic of Italy whose stock is traded on the Milan stock exchange. The Fiat Industrial Group's three sectors design, produce and sell trucks, commercial vehicles, buses and special vehicles, tractors and agricultural and construction equipment, in addition to engines and transmissions for those vehicles and engines for marine applications.

On January 1, 2011, Fiat S.p.A. ("Fiat" and, together with its subsidiaries, the "Fiat Group") effected a "demerger" under Article 2506 of the Italian Civil Code. Pursuant to the demerger, Fiat transferred its ownership interest in Fiat Netherlands to a new holding company, Fiat Industrial, including Fiat's indirect ownership of CNH Global, as well as Fiat's truck and commercial vehicles business and its industrial and marine powertrain business. Consequently, as of January 1, 2011, CNH Global became a subsidiary of Fiat Industrial. In connection with the demerger transaction, shareholders of Fiat received shares of the capital stock of Fiat Industrial. Accordingly, as of January 1, 2011 Fiat Industrial owned approximately 89% of the outstanding common shares of CNH Global through Fiat Netherlands.

CNH manufactures agricultural and construction equipment. CNH Capital provides financial services for CNH America and CNH Canada Ltd. (collectively, "CNH North America") customers located primarily in the United States and Canada. To support CNH North America's sales of agricultural and construction equipment products, CNH Capital offers wholesale financing to CNH North America equipment dealers and retail financing to end-use customers. Wholesale financing consists primarily of dealer floorplan financing and allows dealers the ability to maintain a representative inventory of products. In addition, CNH Capital provides financing to dealers for equipment used in dealer-owned rental yards, parts inventory, working capital, and other financing needs. CNH Capital provides and administers retail financing, primarily retail installment sales contracts and finance leases, to end-use customers for the purchase or lease of new and used CNH North America equipment and other agricultural and construction equipment sold through CNH North America dealers and distributors. In addition, CNH Capital purchases equipment from dealers that is leased to retail customers under operating lease agreements. Customers also use CNH Capital's private-label revolving charge accounts to purchase parts, service, rentals, implements, and attachments from CNH North America dealers. CNH Capital also finances a variety of insurance and equipment protection products offered by CNH Capital Insurance Agency, Inc. in the United States and CNH Capital Canada Insurance Agency Ltd. in Canada (collectively "CNH Capital Insurance") for end users and dealers in conjunction with the purchase of new and used equipment. As a captive finance company, CNH Capital is reliant on the operations of CNH North America, its dealers, and end-use customers.

CNH Capital competes primarily with banks, finance companies, and other financial institutions. Typically, this competition is based upon financial products and services offered, customer service, financial terms and interest rates charged. CNH Capital's long-term profitability is largely dependent on the cyclical nature of the agricultural and construction equipment industries and on prevailing interest rates.

CNH

CNH is a global, full-line company in the agricultural and construction equipment industries, with strong and often leading positions in many geographic and product categories in both of these industries. CNH's global scope and scale includes integrated engineering, manufacturing, marketing and distribution of equipment on five continents. CNH organizes its operations into three business segments: agricultural equipment, construction equipment and Financial Services.

CNH markets its products globally through two well-recognized brand families, Case and New Holland. Case IH (along with Steyr in Europe) and New Holland make up the agricultural brand family. Case and New Holland Construction (along with Kobelco in North America) make up the construction equipment brand family. As of December 31, 2011, CNH was manufacturing products in 37 facilities throughout the world and distributing products in approximately 170 countries through a network of approximately 11,300 dealers and distributors.

In agricultural equipment, CNH believes it is one of the leading global manufacturers of agricultural tractors and combines based on units sold, and has leading positions in hay and forage equipment and specialty harvesting equipment. In construction equipment, CNH believes it has a leading position in backhoe loaders and a strong position in skid steer loaders in North America and crawler excavators in Western Europe. In addition, each brand provides a wide range of replacement parts and services to support its equipment. For the year ended December 31, 2011, CNH sales of agricultural equipment represented 73% of total revenues, sales of construction equipment represented 20% of total revenues and revenue generated by Financial Services represented 7% of total revenues.

CNH believes that it is the most geographically diversified manufacturer and distributor of agricultural and construction equipment in these industries. For the year ended December 31, 2011, 42% of net sales of equipment were generated in North America, 32% in Europe, Africa, the Middle East and the Commonwealth of Independent States, 16% in Latin America and 10% in Asia Pacific. CNH's worldwide manufacturing base includes facilities in Europe, Latin America, North America and Asia.

Relationship with CNH North America

CNH Capital is a key financing source for CNH North America end-use customers and dealers. As a captive finance business, we provide critical financing support for CNH North America equipment sales. CNH North America, CNH's manufacturing entity, offers subsidized financing programs such as low-rate or interest-free periods and other sales incentive programs. We participate in and receive reimbursement for these programs, which often allow us to offer financing to customers at advantageous interest rates or other terms.

Because the use of equipment is typically a key component in producing the end users' source of income, these end users rely heavily on the CNH North America dealer network for replacement equipment purchases, as well as parts and service for existing equipment. CNH Capital supports the relationship between the end users and dealers by providing various financial products and assistance to CNH North America dealers.

CNH Capital's revenue is generated primarily through the profitability of its lending portfolio and the income generated through marketing programs with CNH North America. The size of the lending portfolio is related in part to the level of equipment sales by CNH North America, which is driven in part by the strength of the agricultural and construction markets. The portfolio profitability also is linked to the credit quality of the borrowers, the value of collateral, and the interest rate environment.

The credit quality of the lending portfolio reflects the underwriting standards of CNH Capital, which are developed internally and independent of CNH North America. Retail borrowers are generally commercial enterprises and, in many cases, have had a previous borrowing relationship with CNH Capital. Retail receivables are secured by the purchased equipment, which generally has a longer useful life than the term of the receivable. Wholesale financings are likewise secured by the equipment purchased by the dealer.

Maintaining access to various funding sources at competitive rates is a key component of CNH Capital's business strategy.

CNH Capital funds its operations and lending activity through a combination of term receivables securitizations, committed asset-backed facilities, unsecured facilities, secured borrowings, unsecured borrowings, asset sales, affiliate financing and retained earnings. CNH Capital continues to explore ways to diversify sources of funding.

In addition to portfolio quality and funding costs, CNH Capital's long-term profitability is also dependent on service levels and operational effectiveness. CNH Capital performs billing and collection services, customer support, repossession and remarketing functions, reporting and data management operations and marketing activities.

CNH Capital LLC and CNH Global entered into a support agreement, dated November 4, 2011, pursuant to which CNH Global has agreed to, among other matters, (a) make cash capital contributions to CNH Capital LLC, to the extent that such payments are necessary to cause the ratio of (i) net earnings available for fixed charges to (ii) fixed

charges of CNH Capital LLC and its subsidiaries to be not less than 1.05 for each fiscal quarter of CNH Capital LLC (with such ratio determined, on a consolidated basis and in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ("U.S. GAAP"), for such fiscal quarter and the immediately preceding three fiscal quarters taken as a whole), (b) generally maintain an ownership of at least fifty-one percent (51%) of the capital stock of CNH Capital LLC having voting power for the election of directors or managers and (c) cause CNH Capital LLC to have, as at the end of any fiscal quarter, a consolidated tangible net worth of at least \$50 million. CNH Global is required to cure, directly or indirectly, any deficiency in the ratio of net earnings available for fixed charges to fixed charges or in the consolidated tangible net worth not later than 90 days following the end of the fiscal quarter in which the deficiency occurred. This support agreement is not intended to be and is not a guarantee by CNH Global of any indebtedness or other obligation of CNH Capital LLC. The obligations of CNH Global to CNH Capital LLC pursuant to this support agreement are to CNH Capital LLC only and do not run to, and are not enforceable directly by, any creditor of CNH Capital LLC. No payment by CNH Global was required under this support agreement since its inception.

Products and Services

CNH Capital's financing products are categorized into three main sectors: Retail, Wholesale and Other.

Retail Products and Operations

Retail financing products primarily include installment sales contracts and finance leases to end-use customers. CNH Capital also provides servicing and collection operations for these products.

Retail Installment Sales Contracts and Finance Leases

CNH Capital provides and administers retail financing, primarily retail installment sales contracts and finance leases, to end-use customers for the purchase or lease of new and used CNH North America equipment or other agricultural and construction equipment sold through CNH North America dealers and distributors. In addition, CNH Capital leases equipment to retail customers under operating lease agreements. The terms of retail contracts, finance leases and operating leases (collectively, "receivables") generally range from two to six years, and interest rates on the receivables vary depending on prevailing market interest rates and certain incentive programs offered by CNH North America.

As part of the credit review process, CNH Capital analyzes data regarding the applicant using a credit scoring model that was internally developed by CNH Capital. The model is based on CNH Capital's experience using variables that historically have been predictive of future receivable performance. CNH Capital uses the same credit criteria regardless of the type of receivable or whether the related receivable will be purchased by CNH Capital from a dealer, take the form of a direct receivable payable to CNH Capital from an equipment purchaser, ultimately be sold to a third party, or held on the books of CNH Capital.

CNH Capital requires each prospective customer to complete a credit application that lists the applicant's credit sources, demographic and personal information, and when appropriate the applicant's income, expenses and net worth. In most cases, CNH Capital obtains a credit bureau report on the applicant, or its principals, from an independent credit bureau or checks credit references, which are typically banks, finance companies or suppliers that have furnished credit to the applicant.

The current guidelines that determine the amount that CNH Capital will finance vary based on the applicant's credit history, the type of equipment financed, whether the equipment is new or used, the payment schedule and the payment period. The amount financed may also include the cost of insurance and equipment protection products offered through CNH Capital Insurance, which contribute to maintaining the value of the equipment, as well as taxes and administrative and filing fees. We do not finance an amount in excess of the total purchase price of the equipment, including actual taxes incurred and the cost of insurance and equipment protection products and administrative and filing fees, unless specifically approved by an authorized credit underwriter with the appropriate approval authority.

Retail Servicing and Collections

Retail servicing and collection activities for CNH Capital LLC are generally performed through its subsidiary, New Holland Credit Company, LLC.

When receivables become delinquent, CNH Capital follows a multi-stage collection process. Receivables are considered delinquent as soon as any payment is one day past due. Past due accounts are assigned to collection queues and normal collection procedures are followed. Collectors are generally assigned to specific geographic areas and work closely with local dealers to gather insight into any known regional or borrower difficulties. CNH Capital may consider a change in the payment schedule for a receivable when the delinquency results from a temporary interruption in the customer's cash flow, such as a delay in harvesting due to weather conditions. Given the importance of the equipment to the customer, and based on studies of historical performance data, CNH Capital has determined that providing for limited payment schedule changes ultimately results in a lower loss rate.

If a delinquency cannot be resolved, further actions will be taken, including using outside cash collection agencies, repossessing and selling the equipment, and pursuing customer deficiencies. Sale of repossessed equipment is performed through our equipment remarketing operations, as described below.

Wholesale Products and Operations

CNH Capital extends credit to CNH North America dealers based upon established credit limits. Currently, credit is extended to approximately 1,230 dealers with approximately 2,300 locations in North America.

Dealers may establish lines of credit to finance purchases of new and used agricultural and construction equipment and new parts. These agreements provide CNH Capital with a first priority security interest in the equipment and parts and possibly other collateral. A majority of dealers also provide a personal or corporate guaranty. The amount of the credit lines offered to an existing dealer or a prospective dealer is based upon, among other things, such dealer's expected annual sales, effective net worth, utilization of existing credit lines and inventory turnover. The amount of credit available to a dealer is reviewed on a regular basis, which is usually annually, and such amount is adjusted when appropriate by CNH Capital.

Under the standard terms of CNH Capital's wholesale finance agreements, receivables typically have interest-free periods of up to twelve months and stated original maturities of up to twenty-four months, with repayment accelerated upon the sale of the underlying equipment by the dealer to the end user. The length of these interest-free periods is determined based on the type of equipment sold and the time of year of the sale. During the interest-free period, the Company is compensated by CNH North America for the difference between market interest rates and the amount paid by the dealer. After the interest-free period, CNH Capital begins to assess the dealer interest and will require the dealer to make certain principal curtailment payments.

CNH Capital evaluates and assesses dealers on an ongoing basis as to their credit worthiness, and conducts audits of dealer equipment inventories on a regular basis. The timing of each audit visit is varied and no advance notice is given. Under some circumstances, such as delinquent payments or a deterioration of the dealer's financial condition, CNH Capital may classify a dealer as under credit watch status, upon which CNH Capital will approve any additional extensions of credit on a case-by-case basis and may assume control of equipment or parts releases to such dealer. If a dealer receives payment for selling a piece of equipment, but does not repay the amounts owed on the equipment as required, then the dealer is considered to have sold the equipment out of trust. Selling equipment out of trust is a breach of the wholesale financing agreement between the dealer and CNH Capital. In the event of a dealer default or dealer contract termination, CNH North America may be obligated to repurchase all new equipment. There were no material losses in 2011 or 2010 relating to the termination of dealer contracts.

Other Products

Commercial Revolving Accounts

CNH Capital offers private-label commercial revolving account ("CRA") products, which can be used to purchase parts, service, rentals, implements and attachments predominantly from CNH North America dealers. These CRA products are not a general purpose credit card. CNH Capital is responsible for underwriting and approving customer

accounts and has engaged unaffiliated entities to provide other processing and collection services.

Insurance

CNH Capital finances a variety of insurance and equipment protection products, including physical damage insurance, extended service coverage, and credit life insurance, for end users and dealers in conjunction with the purchase of new and used equipment, through CNH Capital Insurance. CNH Capital Insurance is contracted as an agent for third-party insurers and assumes no insurance risk in these transactions.

Equipment Remarketing Operations

CNH Capital disposes of repossessed equipment, equipment returned at the end of a lease and certain other equipment through its internal remarketing operations. CNH Capital owns and operates a website that lists and sells equipment globally to registered dealers and wholesalers. Generally, the net return realized on equipment sold via the website is higher than it would be if sold via a public auction. Nearly all of the remarketed equipment is sold through the Company's internal remarketing channels.

Competition

CNH Capital's financing products and services are intended to be competitive with those available from third parties. The Company competes primarily with banks, finance companies, and other financial institutions. Typically, this competition is based upon financial products and services offered, customer service, financial terms and interest rates charged. In addition, some of our competitors may be eligible to participate in government programs providing access to capital at more favorable rates, which may create a competitive disadvantage for CNH Capital.

CNH Capital believes that its strong, long-term relationship with the dealers and end-use customers and the ease-of-use of our products provides a competitive edge over other third-party financing options. In addition, the marketing programs offered by CNH North America have a positive influence on the proportion of CNH's equipment sales that are financed by CNH Capital.

Employees

At December 31, 2011, CNH Capital had approximately 500 employees, none of which were represented by unions.

RISK FACTORS

The following risks should be considered in conjunction with Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations beginning on page 13 and the other risks described in the Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements on page i. These risks may affect our operating results and, individually or in the aggregate, could cause our actual results to differ materially from past and anticipated future results. Except as may be required by law, we undertake no obligation to publicly update forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise.

Risks Related to Our Indebtedness and Liquidity

Credit rating changes could affect our cost of funds.

Our access to, and cost of, funding depends on, among other things, the credit ratings of us, our parent CNH, our asset-backed securitization ("ABS") transactions and Fiat Industrial. The rating agencies may change our credit ratings or take other similar actions, which could affect our access to the capital markets and the cost and terms of future borrowings and, therefore, could adversely affect our financial position and results of operations.

We have significant outstanding indebtedness, which may limit our ability to obtain additional funding and limit our financial and operating flexibility.

As of December 31, 2011, we had an aggregate of \$10.2 billion of consolidated indebtedness and our equity was \$1.2 billion.

The extent of our indebtedness could have important consequences to our operations and financial results, including:

- we may not be able to secure additional funds for working capital, capital expenditures, debt service requirements or general corporate purposes;
- we may need to use a portion of our projected future cash flow from operations to pay principal and interest on our indebtedness, which may reduce the amount of funds available to us for other purposes;
- we may be more financially leveraged than some of our competitors, which could put us at a competitive disadvantage;
- we may not be able to adjust rapidly to changing market conditions, which may make us more vulnerable to a downturn in general economic conditions or our business; and
- we may not be able to access the capital markets on favorable terms, which may adversely affect our ability to provide competitive retail and wholesale financing programs.

Restrictive covenants in our debt agreements could limit our financial and operating flexibility.

The indentures governing our outstanding indebtedness, and other credit agreements to which we are a party, contain covenants that restrict our ability and/or that of our subsidiaries to, among other things:

- incur additional debt;
- make certain investments;
- enter into certain types of transactions with affiliates;
- use assets as security in other transactions;
- enter into sale and leaseback transactions; and
- sell certain assets or merge with or into other companies.

In addition, we are required to maintain certain coverage levels for leverage and EBITDA.

Our ability to meet any of these restrictive covenants may be affected by events beyond our control, which could result in material adverse consequences that negatively impact our business, results of operations and financial position. We cannot assure you that we will continue to comply with each restrictive covenant at all times, particularly if we were to encounter challenging and volatile market conditions.

Risks Related to Our Business, Strategy and Operations

Reduced demand for equipment would reduce the opportunities for us to finance equipment.

Our business is largely dependent upon the demand for CNH North America's products and its customers' willingness to enter into financing or leasing arrangements with respect thereto, which may be negatively affected by challenging global economic conditions. As a result, a significant and prolonged decrease in demand for CNH North America's products could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows. Our primary business is to provide retail and wholesale financing alternatives for CNH North America's products to CNH North America's customers and dealers. The demand for CNH North America's products and our financing products and services is influenced by a number of factors, including:

- general economic conditions, including shifts in key economic indicators such as gross domestic product;
- demand for food;
- commodity prices and stock levels;
- net farm income levels;
- availability of credit;

- developments in biofuels;
- infrastructure spending rates;
- housing starts;
- commercial construction;
- seasonality of demand;
- changes and uncertainties in the monetary and fiscal policies of various governmental and regulatory entities;
- CNH North America's ability to maintain key dealerships;
- currency exchange rates and interest rates;
- pricing policies by CNH North America or its competitors; and
- political, economic and legislative changes.

In the equipment industry, changes in demand can occur suddenly, resulting in imbalances in inventories, product capacity, and prices for new and used equipment. If fewer pieces of equipment are sold, CNH Capital will be presented with fewer opportunities to finance equipment.

Change in support from CNH North America.

We participate in certain marketing programs sponsored by CNH North America that allow us to offer financing to customers at advantageous interest rates or other terms. This support from CNH North America provides a material competitive advantage in offering financing to customers of CNH North America's products. Any elimination or reduction of these marketing programs, which affects our ability to offer competitively priced financing to customers, in turn could reduce the percentage of CNH North America's products financed by us and could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. CNH North America also provides us with other types of operational and administrative support, such as human resources and legal assistance. CNH North America also provides a portion of our funding. Any change in support from CNH North America could negatively impact our results of operations.

Customer Credit Risk and Collateral Valuation.

Fundamental to any organization that extends credit is the credit risk associated with its customers. The creditworthiness of each customer, and the rates of delinquencies, repossessions and net losses relating to customer loans are impacted by many factors, including:

- relevant industry and general economic conditions;
- the availability of capital;
- changes in interest rates;
- the experience and skills of the customer's management team;
- commodity prices;
- political events;
- weather; and
- the value of the collateral securing the extension of credit.

A deterioration in the quality of our financial assets, an increase in delinquencies or a reduction in collateral recovery rates could have an adverse impact on our performance. These risks become more acute in any economic slowdown or recession due to decreased demand for (or the availability of) credit, declining asset values, changes in government subsidies, reductions in collateral to loan balance ratios, and an increase in foreclosures and losses. In such circumstances, our loan servicing and litigation costs may also increase. In addition, governments may pass laws, or implement regulations, that modify rights and obligations under existing agreements, or which prohibit or limit the exercise of contractual rights.

When loans default and we repossess collateral securing the repayment of the loan, our ability to sell the collateral to recover or mitigate losses is subject to the market value of such collateral. Those values are affected by levels of new and used inventory of agricultural and construction equipment on the market. They are also dependent upon the strength of the general economy and the strength or weakness of market demand for new and used agricultural and construction equipment. In addition, repossessed collateral may be in poor condition, which would reduce its value.

Finally, relative pricing of used equipment, compared with new equipment, can affect levels of market demand and the resale of repossessed equipment. An industry wide decrease in demand for agricultural or construction equipment could result in lower resale values for repossessed equipment, which could increase losses on loans and leases, adversely affecting our financial position and results of operations.

Changes in interest rates and market liquidity.

Changes in interest rates and market liquidity conditions could have a material adverse effect on our earnings and cash flows. Because a significant number of our receivables are generated at fixed interest rates, our business is subject to fluctuations in interest rates. Changes in market interest rates may influence our financing costs, returns on financial investments and the valuation of derivative contracts and could reduce our earnings and/or cash flow. We also rely on the debt capital markets and a variety of funding programs to provide liquidity for our operations, including committed asset-backed and unsecured facilities and the issuance of secured and unsecured debt. Significant changes in market liquidity conditions could impact our access to funding and the associated funding costs and reduce our earnings and cash flow.

Although we manage interest rate and market liquidity risks with a variety of techniques, including a match funding program, the selective use of derivatives and a diversified funding program, there can be no assurance that fluctuations in interest rates and market liquidity conditions will not have a material adverse effect on our earnings and cash flow. If any of the variety of instruments and strategies we use to hedge our exposure to these various types of risk are ineffective, we may incur losses.

Funding Risk.

We have traditionally relied upon the ABS market and committed asset-backed facilities as a primary source of funding and liquidity. Access to funding at competitive rates is essential to our business. From mid-2007 through 2009, events occurred in the global financial market, including weakened financial condition of several major financial institutions, problems related to subprime mortgages and other financial assets, the devaluation of various assets in secondary markets, the forced sale of asset-backed and other securities by certain investors, and the lowering of ratings on certain ABS transactions, which caused a significant reduction in liquidity in the secondary market for ABS transactions outstanding at such time and a significant increase in funding costs. During these periods, conditions in the ABS market adversely affected our ability to sell receivables on a favorable or timely basis. Similar conditions in the future could have an adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations and cash flow.

To maintain competitiveness in the capital markets and to promote the efficient use of various funding sources, additional reserve support was added to certain previously issued ABS transactions. Such optional support may be required to maintain credit ratings assigned to certain transactions if loss experiences are higher than anticipated. The provision of additional reserve support could have an adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations and cash flow.

Repurchase Risk.

In connection with our ABS transactions, we make customary representations and warranties regarding the assets being securitized, as disclosed in the related offering documents. While no recourse provisions exist that allow holders of asset-backed securities issued by our trusts to require us to repurchase those securities, a breach of these representations and warranties could give rise to an obligation to repurchase non-conforming receivables from the trusts. Any future repurchases could have an adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations and cash flow.

Regulatory Risk.

Our operations are subject, in certain instances, to supervision and regulation by various governmental authorities. These operations are also subject to various laws and judicial and administrative decisions and interpretations imposing requirements and restrictions, which among other things:

- regulate credit granting activities, including establishing licensing requirements;
- establish maximum interest rates, finance and other charges;
- regulate customers' insurance coverage;
- require disclosure to customers;
- govern secured and unsecured transactions;
- set collection, foreclosure, repossession and claims handling procedures and other trade practices;
- prohibit discrimination in the extension of credit and administration of loans; and
- regulate the use and reporting of information related to a borrower.

To the extent that applicable laws are amended or construed differently, new laws are adopted to expand the scope of regulation imposed upon us, or applicable laws prohibit interest rates we charge from rising to a level commensurate with risk and market conditions, such events could adversely affect our business and our financial position and results of operations.

Potential Impact of Dodd-Frank Act.

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, or the Dodd-Frank Act, was signed into law in July 2010. The various requirements of the Dodd-Frank Act, including the many implementing regulations yet to be released, may substantially affect our origination, servicing and securitization programs. For example, the Dodd-Frank Act strengthens the regulatory oversight of these securities and capital market activities by the SEC and increases the regulation of the securitization markets through, among other things, a mandated risk retention requirement for securitizers and a direction to the SEC to regulate credit rating agencies and adopt regulations governing these organizations. While we will continue to monitor these developments and their impact on our access to the ABS market, these and future SEC regulations may impact our ability to engage in these activities or increase the effective cost of asset-backed transactions in the future, which could adversely affect our financial position, results of operations and cash flow.

Market Risk.

We hold retained interests in securitization transactions, which we refer to collectively as retained interests. We carry these retained interests at estimated fair value, which we determine by discounting the projected cash flows over the expected life of the assets sold in connection with such transactions using prepayment, default, loss and interest rate assumptions. We are required to recognize declines in the value of our retained interests, and resulting charges to income or equity, when their fair value is less than carrying value. The portion of the decline, from discount rates exceeding those in the initial deal, is charged to equity. All other credit related declines are charged to income. Assumptions used to determine fair values of retained interests are based on internal evaluations and, although we believe our methodology is reasonable, actual results may differ from our expectations. Our current estimated valuation of retained interests may change in future periods, and we may incur additional impairment charges as a result.

Weather, climate change, and natural disasters can impact our operations and our results.

Poor or unusual weather conditions, particularly in the spring, can significantly affect purchasing decisions of CNH North America's potential customers and therefore affect our ability to finance equipment purchases. In addition, natural disasters such as tornadoes, hurricanes, earthquakes, floods, droughts and other forms of severe weather in an area in which we finance equipment purchases could have an adverse effect on our customers and their ability to repay debt.

Competitive activity, or failure by us to respond to actions by our competitors, could adversely affect our results of operations.

We operate in a highly competitive environment, with financing for users of CNH North America equipment available through a variety of sources, such as banks, finance companies and other financial institutions. Our operations may be unable to compete successfully due to the inability to access capital on favorable terms, or due to issues relating to funding resources, products, licensing or other governmental regulations, and the number, type and focus of services offered. In addition, some of our competitors may be eligible to participate in government programs providing access to capital at favorable rates for which we are ineligible, which may put us at a competitive disadvantage. The success of our business also depends on our ability to develop, produce and market quality products and services that meet our customers' needs. Increasing competition may adversely affect our business if we are unable to match the products and services of our competitors. If we are unable to effectively compete, our financial position and results of operations will suffer.

Adverse economic conditions could place a financial strain on our dealers and adversely affect our operating results.

Global economic conditions continue to place financial stress on many of our dealers. Dealer financial difficulties may impact their equipment financing and inventory management decisions, as well as their ability to provide services to their customers purchasing our equipment. Accordingly, additional financial strains on members of our dealer network resulting from current or future economic conditions could adversely impact our financial position and results of operations.

A decrease in the residual value of the equipment that we lease could adversely affect our results.

Declines in the residual value of equipment leased by us may reduce our earnings. We recognize the residual value of leased equipment, which is the estimated future wholesale market value of leased equipment at the time of the expiration of the lease term. We estimate the residual value of leased equipment at the inception of the lease based on a number of factors, including historical wholesale market sales prices, past remarketing experience and any known significant market/product trends. If estimated future market values significantly decline due to economic factors, obsolescence or other adverse circumstances, we may not realize such residual value, which could reduce our earnings, either through an increase in depreciation expense or a decrease in finance revenue.

Our business operations may be impacted by various types of claims, lawsuits, and other contingent obligations.

We are involved in various lawsuits and other legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of our business. We estimate such potential claims and contingent liabilities and, where appropriate, establish reserves to address these contingent liabilities. The ultimate outcome of the legal matters pending against us or our subsidiaries is uncertain. Further, we could in the future become subject to judgments or enter into settlements of lawsuits and claims that could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations in any particular period. In addition, while we maintain insurance coverage with respect to certain claims, we may not be able to obtain such insurance on acceptable terms in the future, if at all, and any such insurance may not provide adequate coverage against any such claims.

Potential conflicts of interest with Fiat Industrial.

As of December 31, 2011, Fiat Industrial owned, indirectly through Fiat Netherlands, approximately 88% of the outstanding common shares of CNH Global. CNH Global is the indirect owner of 100% of CNH Capital. As long as Fiat Industrial continues to own shares representing more than 50% of the combined voting power of CNH Global's capital stock, it will be able to direct the election of all of the members of CNH Global's board of directors and determine the outcome of all matters submitted to a vote of the shareholders. Circumstances may arise in which the interests of Fiat Industrial could be in conflict with the interests of other debt and equity security holders of CNH Global or any of its subsidiaries, including CNH Capital. In addition, Fiat Industrial may pursue certain transactions that in its view will enhance its equity investment, even though such transactions may not be viewed as favorably by other debt and equity security holders of CNH Global or any of its subsidiaries, including CNH Capital.

Fiat Industrial provides financing to us. In the recent past, due to the then existing capital markets crisis and its material adverse impact on the ABS markets, we relied more heavily upon financing provided by Fiat. In the event of a repeat of the severe downturn in the ABS markets, we might need to again look to other financing sources, including Fiat Industrial, though Fiat Industrial would have no obligation to provide such financing.

We believe our business relationships with Fiat Industrial can offer economic benefits to us; however, Fiat Industrial's ownership of our corporate parent's capital stock and its ability to direct the election of directors could create, or appear to create, potential conflicts of interest when Fiat Industrial is faced with decisions that could have different implications for Fiat Industrial, CNH and CNH Capital.

Our participation in cash management pools exposes us to Fiat Industrial Group credit risk.

We participate in a group-wide cash management system with other companies within the Fiat Industrial Group, including CNH America and CNH Canada Ltd. Our positive cash deposits with Fiat Industrial, if any, are either invested by Fiat Industrial treasury subsidiaries in highly rated, highly liquid money market instruments or bank deposits, or may be applied by Fiat Industrial treasury subsidiaries to meet the financial needs of other Fiat Industrial Group members and vice versa. While we believe participation in such Fiat Industrial treasury subsidiaries' cash management pools provides us with financial benefits, it exposes us to Fiat Industrial credit risk.

In the event of a bankruptcy or insolvency of Fiat Industrial (or any other Fiat Industrial Group member, including CNH America and CNH Canada Ltd., in the jurisdictions with set off agreements) or in the event of a bankruptcy or insolvency of the Fiat Industrial entity in whose name the deposit is pooled, we may be unable to secure the return of such funds to the extent they belong to us, and we may be viewed as a creditor of such Fiat Industrial Group entity with respect to such deposits. It is possible that our claims as a creditor could be subordinated to the rights of third-party creditors in certain situations. If we are not able to recover our deposits, our financial position and results of operations may be materially impacted.

Our financial statements may be impacted by changes in accounting standards.

Our financial statements are subject to the application of U.S. GAAP, which are periodically revised. At times, we are required to adopt new or revised accounting standards issued by recognized bodies. It is possible such changes could have a material adverse effect on our reported results of operations or financial position. See "Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies" to our consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011 for additional information on the adoption of new accounting guidance.

Data security breaches and other disruptions could compromise our information and expose us to liability, which would cause our business and reputation to suffer.

In the ordinary course of business, we collect and store sensitive data, including intellectual property, our proprietary business information and that of our customers and business partners, and personally identifiable information of our customers and employees, in our data centers and on our networks. The secure processing, maintenance, and transmission of this information by us and any contracted third parties is critical to our operations. We have not experienced any significant known or threatened data security incidents to date and we employ and seek to improve security measures and initiatives designed to reduce the impact of such risk. Despite our security measures and initiatives, our information technology and infrastructure may be subject to attacks by hackers or breached due to employee error, malfeasance, or other disruptions. Any such breach could compromise our networks and the information stored could be accessed, publicly disclosed, lost, or stolen. Any such access, disclosure or other loss could result in legal claims or proceedings and harm our business and reputation.

PROPERTIES

Our principal executive offices are located at 5729 Washington Avenue, Racine, WI 53406. We also maintain the following offices:

Location	Primary Function	Tenant	Ownership Status
Burlington, ON	Office	CNH Capital Canada Ltd.	Leased
New Holland, PA	Office	New Holland Credit Company, LLC	Leased from New Holland North America, Inc.
Racine, WI	Office	CNH Capital LLC	Leased from CNH America

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

CNH Capital is party to various litigation matters and claims arising from its operations. Management believes that the outcome of these proceedings, individually and in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on CNH Capital's financial position or results of operations.

MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.

MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDERS MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

All of CNH Capital LLC's equity interests are owned by CNH America, which is indirectly wholly-owned by CNH Global. There is currently no established trading market for CNH Capital LLC's equity interests.

In 2011 and 2010, CNH Capital LLC declared and paid cash dividends of \$85 million and \$295 million, respectively, to CNH America.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

Organization

We offer a range of financial products and services to our North American customers and dealers. The principal products offered are retail financing for the purchase or lease of new and used CNH equipment and wholesale financing to our dealers. Wholesale financing consists primarily of floor plan financing as well as financing equipment used in dealer-owned rental yards, parts inventory and working capital needs. In addition, we purchase equipment from dealers that is leased to retail customers under operating lease agreements, and we finance customers using our private-label commercial revolving accounts.

As of the beginning of 2010, we adopted new accounting guidance related to the accounting for transfers of financial assets and the consolidation of variable interest entities ("VIEs"). As a significant portion of our securitization trusts and facilities were no longer exempt from consolidation under the new accounting guidance, we were required to consolidate their receivables and related liabilities.

As we adopted the guidance prospectively, the financial statements prepared for the year ended December 31, 2010 and for subsequent periods reflect the new accounting requirements, but the financial statements for periods ended on or before December 31, 2009 reflected the accounting guidance applicable during those periods. Our statements of income for the year ended December 31, 2010 and for subsequent periods no longer reflect securitization income and initial gains or losses on new securitization transactions, but include interest income and other income associated with the securitized receivables, and interest expense associated with the debt issued from the securitization trusts and facilities. Therefore, 2011 and 2010 results and balances are not comparable to prior period results and balances. In addition, because our new securitization transactions that do not meet the requirements for derecognition under the new guidance are accounted for as secured borrowings rather than asset sales, the cash flows from these transactions are presented as cash flows from financing transactions in 2011 and 2010 rather than cash flows from operating or investing activities.

Trends and Economic Conditions

Our business is closely related to the agricultural and construction equipment industries because we offer financing products for such equipment. For the year ended December 31, 2011, CNH agricultural equipment sales increased 23% compared to the year ended December 31, 2010. CNH construction equipment sales increased 32% for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to the year ended December 31, 2010.

In general, our receivable mix between agricultural and construction equipment financing directionally reflects the mix of equipment sales by CNH. As such, changes in the agricultural industry or with respect to our agricultural equipment borrowers ("farmers") may affect the majority of our lending portfolio.

Overall, the North American agricultural industry has shown stability during the recent economic crisis. During the past five years, farm income in North America has experienced some of its highest historical levels. The relatively fixed supply of North American agricultural farm land combined with the growing global demand for food products has been one of the drivers of strong commodity prices and growth in farm equity. The financing we provide to our borrowers is secured by the related equipment, which typically has a long useful life and is a key component in the operation of a farmer's business. All of these factors contribute in part to the strong credit performance of our lending portfolio in recent periods.

Net income attributable to CNH Capital LLC was \$200.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to \$160.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. Net interest margin improved in 2011 due to a higher average portfolio. In addition, there was a \$43.5 million reduction in the provision for credit losses in 2011 compared to 2010. Delinquent retail receivables greater than 30 days past due were 1.0% of our retail receivables at December 31, 2011, 103 bps lower than the December 31, 2010 level. The delinquency improvement was a key factor in the provision reduction in 2011. Significant further reductions in the delinquency rate are not expected.

During 2011, we entered into two unsecured funding transactions. In November 2011, CNH Capital completed a private offering of \$500 million in aggregate principal amount of its 6.250% notes due 2016 issued at par. In July 2011, CNH Capital entered into a \$250 million five-year unsecured credit facility consisting of a \$150 million term facility and a \$100 million revolving credit facility.

We expect to further diversify our funding sources and expand our investor base as part of our strategy to create a stand-alone funding profile and achieve investment grade credit ratings.

Our business and operations are also significantly affected by macroeconomic conditions, including, among other things, the uncertainty of the global economic recovery, the repayment capabilities of sovereign and state governments, capital market disruptions, the availability of credit for us and our customers, the effectiveness of governmental actions in respect to monetary policies, general economic conditions and financial regulatory reform.

Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2011 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2010

Revenues

Revenues for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 were as follows (dollars in thousands):

_	Year Ended December 31,		_	
	2011	2010	\$ Change	% Change
Interest income on retail and other receivables and finance leases	\$ 454,874	\$ 494,759	\$ (39,885)	(8.1)%
Interest income from affiliates	138,944	126,902	12,042	9.5
Gain on retail, wholesale and revolving credit notes sold		38	(38)	N/M
Servicing fee income	1,747	3,340	(1,593)	(47.7)
Rental income on operating leases	164,247	163,262	985	0.6
Other income	71,187	75,250	(4,063)	(5.4)
Total revenues	\$ <u>830,999</u>	\$ <u>863,551</u>	\$ <u>(32,552</u>)	(3.8)%

Revenues totaled \$831.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to \$863.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. The decrease was primarily due to the decrease in interest income on retail and wholesale receivables.

Interest income on retail and other receivables and finance leases for the year ended December 31, 2011 was \$454.9 million, a decrease of \$39.9 million from the year ended December 31, 2010. The decrease was primarily due to a \$54.5 million unfavorable impact from lower interest rates on new and existing retail and wholesale receivables, partially offset by a \$14.6 million favorable impact from higher average earning assets. The annualized average yield was 6.8% for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to 7.1% for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Interest income from affiliates for the year ended December 31, 2011 was \$138.9 million compared to \$126.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. The increase was primarily due to higher average earning wholesale assets.

Rental income on operating leases for the year ended December 31, 2011 was \$164.2 million, an increase of \$0.9 million from the year ended December 31, 2010. The increase was primarily due to a \$5.8 million favorable impact in higher average earning assets, partially offset by a \$4.9 million unfavorable impact from lower interest rates.

Expenses

Interest expense totaled \$268.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to \$313.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. The decrease was primarily due to lower average interest rates, partially offset by an increase in average total debt.

Administrative and operating expenses were \$242.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to

\$303.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. The decrease was primarily due to a reduction of \$43.5 million in the provision for credit losses and a reduction of \$7.5 million in depreciation of equipment on operating leases.

The provision for credit losses for the year ended December 31, 2011 totaled \$32.9 million compared to \$76.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. The decrease was primarily due to lower loss rates on construction equipment retail receivables and improvements in the delinquency rates of the retail portfolio.

The provision for income taxes was \$118.1 million in 2011 (for a 36.9% effective rate) compared to \$85.1 million in 2010 (for a 34.4% effective rate). The increase in the effective tax rate was primarily due to the geographic mix of income earned within the U.S.

Receivables and Equipment on Operating Leases Originated and Held

Receivables and equipment on operating lease originations and balances held for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 were as follows (dollars in thousands):

	Originations			Baland	ce at December	31,
	2011	2010	% Change	2011	2010	% Change
Retail receivables	\$3,777,794	\$3,292,071	14.8%	\$6,258,289	\$5,708,497	9.6%
Wholesale receivables	13,308,030	11,507,312	15.6	2,972,116	2,757,048	7.8
Other	951,084	934,259	1.8	262,817	280,398	(6.3)
Equipment on operating leases	386,361	356,902	8.3	647,617	613,893	5.5
Total receivables and equipment on operating						
leases	\$18,423,269	\$16,090,544	14.5%	\$10,140,839	\$9,359,836	8.3%

Retail receivables originations increased in 2011 compared to 2010, primarily due to increases in retail sales of CNH equipment. Wholesale receivables originations increased primarily due to an increase in net sales of CNH equipment.

The total retail receivables balance 30 days or more past due as a percentage of the retail receivables portfolio was 1.0% and 2.1% at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The total wholesale receivables balance 30 days or more past due as a percentage of the wholesale receivables portfolio was not significant with respect to either of the foregoing periods. Total retail receivables on non-accrual status, which represent receivables for which we have ceased accruing finance income, were \$55.5 million and \$51.4 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Total wholesale receivables on non-accrual status, were \$54.4 million and \$62.3 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Total receivable write-off amounts, net of recoveries, by product, for the 2011 and 2010 fiscal years were as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31

	Tour Endou December (
	2011	2010	
Retail receivables	\$21,920	\$60,282	
Wholesale receivables	12,166	11,248	
Other	9,339	14,605	
Total write-offs, net of recoveries	\$43,425	\$86,135	

The decrease in retail write-offs in 2011 was consistent with improved conditions in the construction market and favorable delinquency trends in both the agricultural and construction equipment loan portfolios compared to 2010.

Our allowance for credit losses on all receivables financed totaled \$106.7 million at December 31, 2011 and \$118.7 million at December 31, 2010. The level of the allowance is based on many quantitative and qualitative factors, including historical loss experience by product category, portfolio duration, delinquency trends, economic conditions and credit risk quality. We believe our allowance is sufficient to provide for losses in our existing receivable portfolio.

Year Ended December 31, 2010 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2009

As referred to above, effective January 1, 2010 we adopted Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 860, Transfers and Servicing, formerly SFAS No. 166, Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets, an amendment of FASB Statement No. 140, and ASC 810, Consolidations, formerly SFAS No. 167, Amendments to FASB Interpretation No. 46(R). As a result, our reported results for 2010 are not comparable to our reported results for 2009 under U.S. GAAP. We have therefore highlighted the impact of the change in accounting in the following discussion.

Revenues

Revenues for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 were as follows (dollars in thousands):

	Year Ended December 31,				
	2010	2009	\$ Change	% Change	
Interest income on retail and other receivables and finance leases	\$494,759	\$236,237	\$258,522	109.4%	
Interest income from affiliates	126,902	55,500	71,402	128.7	
Gain on retail, wholesale and revolving credit notes sold	38	147,461	(147,423)	N/M	
Servicing fee income	3,340	57,941	(54,601)	(94.2)	
Rental income on operating leases	163,262	155,851	7,411	4.8	
Other income	75,250	49,210	26,040	52.9	
Total revenues	\$863,551	\$702,200	\$161,351	23.0%	

Revenues totaled \$863.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 compared to \$702.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. The increase was primarily due to the change in accounting guidance in January 2010 (approximately \$230 million), offset by lower interest rates on retail receivables and lower average receivables. Interest income, interest expense, provision for credit losses and other operating expenses specific to receivables that were previously reported as off-book are now reported as on-book.

Interest income on retail and other receivables and finance leases for the year ended December 31, 2010 was \$494.8 million, an increase of \$258.5 million from the year ended December 31, 2009. The increase was primarily due to the change in accounting (\$366 million), partially offset by a \$78.2 million unfavorable impact of lower interest rates on new and existing retail and wholesale receivables along with a \$28.8 million unfavorable impact of lower average receivables (mostly construction equipment). The annualized average yield was 7.1% for the year ended December 31, 2010 compared to 7.5% for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Gain on retail, wholesale and revolving credit notes sold for 2010 was immaterial compared to \$147.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, primarily due to our new accounting guidance related to VIEs.

Servicing fee income for the year ended December 31, 2010 was \$3.3 million compared to \$57.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. The decrease was primarily due to our new accounting guidance related to VIEs.

Rental income on operating leases for the year ended December 31, 2010 was \$163.3 million, an increase of \$7.4 million from the year ended December 31, 2009. The increase was primarily due to a \$6.0 million favorable impact in higher average earning assets and a \$1.4 million favorable impact from higher interest rates.

Expenses

Interest expense totaled \$313.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 compared to \$180.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. The increase was primarily due to the change in accounting (\$251 million), offset by a reduction in the cost of funds in 2010. This reduction was primarily driven by lower base rates and spreads and, to a lesser extent, a reduction in average assets in 2010.

Administrative and operating expenses were \$303.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 compared to \$354.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. The decrease was primarily due to a decrease in the impairments of retained interest driven by our new accounting guidance related to VIEs.

The provision for credit losses for the year ended December 31, 2010 totaled \$76.4 million compared to \$88.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. The decrease was primarily due to lower write-offs of construction equipment retail receivables (\$65 million) and lower losses on the commercial revolving accounts (\$9 million), partially offset by increases in risk in our Ag input receivables portfolio (\$23 million) and the change in accounting (\$46 million).

The provision for income taxes was \$85.1 million in 2010 (for a 34.4% effective rate) compared to \$52.3 million in 2009 (for a 31.1% effective rate). The increase in the effective tax rate was primarily due to the geographic mix of income earned within the U.S.

Receivables and Equipment on Operating Leases Originated and Held

Receivables and equipment on operating lease originations and balances held for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 were as follows (dollars in thousands):

	Originations			Balar	ice at December	31,
	2010	2009	% Change	2010	2009	% Change **
Retail receivables	\$3,292,071	\$2,847,859	15.6%	\$5,708,497	\$1,552,343	N/M
Wholesale receivables	11,507,312	9,585,662	20.0	2,757,048	700,749	N/M
Other	934,259	912,623	2.4	280,398	235,772	N/M
Equipment on operating leases	356,902	260,047	37.2	613,893	600,700	N/M
Total receivables and equipment on operating						
leases	\$16,090,544	\$13,606,191	18.3%	\$9,359,836	\$3,089,564	N/M

^{**} Note: The percentage change in receivables balance between 2009 and 2010 is not meaningful given the change in accounting treatment in 2010.

Retail receivables originations increased in 2010 compared to 2009, primarily due to increases in retail sales of CNH agricultural equipment.

The total retail receivables balance 30 days or more past due as a percentage of the retail receivables portfolio was 2.1% and 3.8% at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The total wholesale receivables balance 30 days or more past due as a percentage of the wholesale receivables portfolio was not significant with respect to any of the foregoing periods. Total retail receivables on non-accrual status, which represent receivables for which we have ceased accruing finance income, were \$51.4 million and \$82.2 million at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Total wholesale receivables on non-accrual status were \$62.3 million and \$67.6 million at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Total receivable write-off amounts, net of recoveries, by product, for the 2010 and 2009 fiscal years were as follows (in thousands):

Vear Ended December 31

	Teal Ellueu De	scember 31,
	2010	2009
Retail receivables	\$60,282	\$28,357
Wholesale receivables	11,248	2,890
Other	14,605	17,091
Total write-offs, net of recoveries	\$86,135	\$48,338

Our allowance for credit losses on all receivables financed totaled \$118.7 million at December 31, 2010 and \$73.2 million at December 31, 2009. This increase in the allowance was primarily due to the change in accounting guidance.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The following discussion of liquidity and capital resources principally focuses on our statements of cash flows, balance sheets and capitalization. The majority of our originated receivables are securitized, and cash generated from such receivables is utilized to pay the related debt. In addition, we have committed secured and unsecured facilities, affiliate borrowing and cash to fund our liquidity and capital needs.

CNH Capital's current funding strategy is to maintain sufficient liquidity and flexible access to a wide variety of financial instruments and funding options. In the past, securitization has been one of our most economical sources of funding, and with our current non-investment grade rating, we expect securitization to continue to represent a substantial portion of our capital structure. In addition to our current funding and liquidity sources, which include a combination of term receivables securitizations, committed asset-backed and unsecured facilities, secured and unsecured borrowings and affiliate funding sources, we expect changes to our funding profile as costs and terms of accessing the unsecured term market improve. In addition to our offering of unsecured notes in November 2011 and our access to unsecured committed bank facilities, we continue to evaluate financing alternatives to diversify our funding base.

Cash Flows

	For the Years Ended December 31,					
		2011		2010		2009
			(in	thousands)		
Cash flows provided by (used in):						
Operating activities	\$	465,102	\$	357,027	\$	205,836
Investing activities		(966,553)		(556,891)		1,902,044
Financing activities		674,752		222,641		(1,879,306)
Net cash increase (decrease)	\$	173,301	\$	22,777	\$	228,574

Operating activities in 2011 generated \$465 million of cash, resulting primarily from net income of \$202 million, adjusted by depreciation and amortization of \$112 million and deferred income tax expense of \$59 million. The increase of cash generated from operating activities in 2011 compared to 2010 was primarily due to the increase in net income of \$39 million and a \$114 million improvement in working capital. At the beginning of 2010, we adopted new accounting guidance related to the accounting for transfers of financial assets and the consolidation of VIEs. Under this guidance, certain securitization transactions were accounted for as secured borrowings rather than asset sales. The increase of cash generated from operating activities in 2010 compared to 2009 was primarily due to the increase in net income of \$47 million and the reduction of gains on retail, wholesale and revolving credit notes sold due to the new accounting guidance.

Cash flows used by investing activities in 2011 totaled \$967 million, resulting from a net growth in receivables of \$819 million and \$386 million in expenditures for equipment on operating leases, partially offset by proceeds from the sale of equipment on operating leases of \$238 million. Cash flows used by investing activities in 2010 totaled \$557 million, resulting from a new growth in receivables of \$278 million, \$357 million in expenditures for equipment on operating leases, and a \$146 million increase in restricted cash, partially offset by proceeds from the sale of equipment on operating lease of \$226 million. The increase in cash flows used by investing activities for 2011 compared to 2010 was primarily due to an increase in the net growth in receivables. The \$1.9 billion in cash generated by investing activities in 2009 primarily related to securitizations in 2009. The cash flows from these securitization transactions were presented as investing activities in 2009 and as financing activities in 2010 and 2011.

Cash provided by financing activities in 2011 of \$675 million primarily reflected the \$5,579 million issuance of long term debt, revolving credit facilities and affiliated debt, offset by a payment of \$4,819 million to reduce long term and affiliated debt and a payment of \$85 million of cash dividends to CNH America. Cash provided by financing activities in 2010 of \$223 million primarily reflected the net \$1,074 million issuance of long term debt and revolving credit facilities, offset by a net payment of \$556 million to reduce affiliated debt and a payment of \$295 million of cash dividends to CNH America. The increase in cash provided by financing activities in 2011 compared to 2010 was primarily due to a reduction in dividends paid of \$210 million and net cash from funding transactions. Cash flows used by financing activities in 2009 of \$1,879 million primarily reflected the net payment of \$1,078 million to

reduce affiliated debt, a net \$652 million payment of long term debt and revolving credit facilities, and a payment of \$150 million of cash dividends to CNH America.

Securitization

CNH Capital and its predecessor entities have been securitizing receivables since 1992. Because this market generally remains a cost effective financing source and allows access to a wide investor base, we expect to continue utilizing securitization as one of our core sources of funding in the near future. CNH Capital has completed public and private issuances of asset-backed securities in both the U.S. and Canada and, as of December 31, 2011, the amounts outstanding were approximately \$6.4 billion.

We will strive to continue to tailor our transactions to applicable market conditions while optimizing economic terms and reducing execution risks.

Committed Asset-Backed Facilities

CNH Capital has committed asset-backed facilities with several banks, primarily through their commercial paper conduit programs. Committed asset-backed facilities for the U.S. and Canada totaled \$3.4 billion at December 31, 2011, with original maturities of one to two years. The excess availability under the facilities varies during the year, depending on origination volume and the refinancing of receivables with term securitization transactions. At December 31, 2011, approximately \$1.1 billion of funding was available for use under these facilities.

Unsecured Financing Transactions

During 2011, CNH Capital completed two unsecured funding transactions. In November 2011, CNH Capital completed a private offering of \$500 million in aggregate principal amount of its 6.250% notes, issued at par. These notes will mature on November 1, 2016. In July 2011, CNH Capital entered into a \$250 million five-year unsecured credit facility consisting of a \$150 million term facility and a \$100 million revolving credit facility with a final maturity in July 2016.

Other Financing Transactions

CNH Capital has also met some of its funding needs through financing opportunities such as bank loans secured by various receivables, third-party direct sale transactions and private short-term lending agreements.

Affiliate Sources

CNH Capital borrows, as needed, from CNH. This source of funding is primarily used to finance various on-book assets and provides additional flexibility when evaluating market conditions and potential third-party financing options. We have obtained financing from Fiat Industrial treasury subsidiaries and, from time to time, have entered into term loan agreements. At December 31, 2011, affiliated debt was \$0.8 billion, down from \$1.6 billion at December 31, 2010.

Our equity position also supports our capabilities to access various funding sources. Our stockholder's equity at December 31, 2011 was \$1.2 billion, compared to \$1.1 billion at December 31, 2010.

Liquidity

The vast majority of CNH Capital's debt is self-liquidating from the cash generated by the underlying amortizing receivables. Normally, additional liquidity should not be necessary for the repayment of such debt. New originations of retail receivables are usually warehoused in committed asset-backed facilities until being refinanced in the term ABS market or with other third-party debt. New wholesale receivables are typically financed through a master trust and funded by variable funding notes ("VFNs") or in the term ABS market. As of December 31, 2011, CNH Capital had excess availability under these programs to fund new originations of both retail and wholesale receivables. Cash and commitments under the facilities shown in the table below totaled \$4.9 billion, of which \$1.8 billion was available for use at December 31, 2011.

	(in thousands)
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash	\$ 1,361,452
Committed asset-backed facilities	3,417,250
Committed unsecured facility	100,000
Total cash and facilities	4,878,702
Less: Restricted cash	767,359
Less: Facilities utilization	2,327,472
Available for use	\$ <u>1,783,871</u>

The liquidity available for use varies seasonally due to changes in origination volumes, reflecting the financing needs of our customers, and is influenced by the timing of any refinancing of underlying receivables.

In connection with a limited number of funding transactions, CNH Capital America LLC provides financial guarantees to various parties on behalf of certain foreign CNH Financial Services subsidiaries, in an amount not to exceed \$292.3 million as of December 31, 2011.

Debt

Our consolidated debt as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 is set forth in the table below (in thousands):

	2011	2010
Short-term debt (including current maturities of long-term debt)	\$ 4,796,035	\$ 3,875,932
Long-term debt	4,587,773	4,043,897
Total third-party debt	9,383,808	7,919,829
Affiliated debt	819,270	1,567,107
Total debt	\$ <u>10,203,078</u>	\$ <u>9,486,936</u>

The majority of our debt is secured third-party financing, including borrowings under committed asset-backed facilities and issuance of term securitization transactions.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

The following table shows cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 (in thousands):

	20	<u> 11</u>	2010
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	594,093	\$ 420,792
Restricted cash		767,359	773,254
Total cash	\$ _1,3	361,452	\$ 1,194,046

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash are comprised of all highly liquid investments with short-term original maturities. Cash and cash equivalents on December 31, 2011 were \$594.1 million compared to \$420.8 million on December 31, 2010. The increase in cash and cash equivalents was primarily due to an increase in debt.

Restricted cash is principally held by depository banks in order to comply with securitization contractual agreements, such as providing cash reserve accounts for the benefit of securitization investors. Restricted cash remained flat, with \$767.4 million on December 31, 2011 compared to \$773.3 million on December 31, 2010.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We disclose our off-balance sheet arrangements in the notes to our consolidated financial statements. For more information, please see "Note 3: Receivables" to our consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Contractual Obligations

The following table sets forth the aggregate amounts of our contractual obligations and commitments as of December 31, 2011 with definitive payment terms that will require significant cash outlays in the future.

		Payments Due by Period					
	-	Less than				After	
		Total	1 year	1-3 years	4-5 years	4-5 years 5 years	
				(in thousands)			
Long-term debt	(1)	\$ 7,583,080	\$ 2,995,307	\$ 2,752,610	\$ 1,795,223	\$	39,940
Interest on fixed rate debt	(2)	528,386	132,821	239,817	155,748		
Interest on floating rate debt	(2)	303,746	62,196	123,168	117,554		828
Operating leases	(3)	10,000	2,000	6,000	2,000		
Total contractual obligations		\$ <u>8,425,212</u>	\$ <u>3,192,324</u>	\$ <u>3,121,595</u>	\$ <u>2,070,525</u>	\$	40,768

⁽¹⁾ Includes current maturities of long-term debt of \$2,995,307.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses during the reported periods. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions. Our critical accounting policies and estimates, which require management assumptions and complex judgments, are summarized below.

Allowance for Credit Losses

The allowance for credit losses is established to cover probable losses for receivables owned by us and consists of two components, depending on whether or not the receivable has been individually identified as being impaired. The first component of the allowance for credit losses covers all or a portion of receivables specifically reviewed by management for which we have determined we will likely not collect all of the contractual principal and interest. Receivables are individually reviewed for impairment based on, among other items, amounts outstanding, amounts past due, collateral value, days past due and prior collection history. These receivables are subject to impairment measurement at the loan level based either on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the receivable's effective interest rate or the fair value of the collateral for collateral-dependent receivables and receivables for which foreclosure is deemed to be probable. When the values are lower than the carrying value of the receivables, impairment is recognized.

The second component of the allowance for credit losses covers all performing receivables that have incurred losses that are not yet individually identifiable. The allowance for these receivables is based on aggregated portfolio evaluations, generally by financial product. The allowance for retail credit losses is based on loss forecast models that consider a variety of factors that include, but are not limited to, historical loss experience, collateral value, portfolio balance and delinquencies. The allowance for wholesale credit losses is based on loss forecast models that consider a variety of factors that include, but are not limited to, historical loss experience, collateral values, portfolio balance and dealer risk ratings. The loss forecast models are updated on a quarterly basis to incorporate information reflecting the current economic environment.

⁽²⁾ The interest funding requirements are based on the 2011 interest rates and the assumption that short-term debt will be renewed for the next five years.

⁽³⁾ Minimum rental commitments.

The total allowance for credit losses at December 31, 2011 and 2010 was \$106.7 million and \$118.7 million, respectively. Management's ongoing evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance for credit losses takes into consideration past loss experience, known and inherent risks in the portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower's ability to repay, estimated value of underlying collateral and current economic conditions.

While management believes it has exercised prudent judgment and applied reasonable assumptions, there can be no assurance that, in the future, changes in economic conditions or other factors will not cause changes in the financial condition of our customers. If the financial condition of some of our customers deteriorates, the timing and level of payments received could be impacted and, therefore, could result in a change to our ultimate losses on the current portfolio.

Equipment on Operating Lease Residual Values

We purchase equipment from our dealers and other independent third parties and lease such equipment to retail customers under operating leases. Income from these operating leases is recognized over the term of the lease. Our decision on whether or not to offer lease financing to customers is based, in part, upon estimated residual values of the leased equipment, which are estimated at the lease inception date and periodically updated. Realization of the residual values, a component in the profitability of a lease transaction, is dependent on our ability to market the equipment at lease termination under the then prevailing market conditions. We continually evaluate whether events and circumstances have impacted the estimated residual values of equipment on operating leases. Although realization is not assured, management believes that the estimated residual values are realizable.

Total operating lease residual values at December 31, 2011 and 2010 were \$498.2 million and \$460.8 million, respectively.

Estimates used in determining end-of-lease market values for equipment on operating leases significantly impact the amount and timing of depreciation expense. If future market values for this equipment were to decrease 10% from our present estimates, the total impact would be to increase our depreciation expense on equipment on operating leases by approximately \$49.8 million. This amount would be charged to depreciation expense during the remaining lease terms such that the net investment in operating leases at the end of the lease terms would be equal to the revised residual values. Initial lease terms generally range from three to four years.

Tax Contingencies

We are periodically subject to audits of our various income tax returns by taxing authorities. These audits review tax filing positions, including the allocation of income among our tax jurisdictions. Some of our tax positions could be challenged by the taxing authorities. The estimate of our tax contingencies requires the use of judgment to estimate the exposure associated with our various tax filing positions. Although management believes that the judgments and estimates are reasonable, actual results could differ, and we may be exposed to gains or losses that could be material. An unfavorable tax settlement would likely require use of our cash and may result in an increase in our effective income tax rate in the period of resolution. A favorable tax settlement may also require the use of cash but would reduce our effective tax rate in the period of resolution. See "Note 8: Income Taxes" in the notes to our consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011 for further details.

New Accounting Pronouncements

See "Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies" in the notes to our consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011 for further details.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to a variety of market risks, primarily changes in interest rates. We monitor our exposure to these risks, and manage the underlying economic exposures on transactions using financial instruments such as forward contracts, interest rate swaps, interest rate caps and forward starting swaps. We do not hold or issue derivatives or other financial instruments for speculation purposes or to hedge translation risks. See "Note 9: Financial Instruments" in the notes to our consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011 for a description of our risk management and the methods and assumptions used to determine the fair values of financial instruments.

Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates. We monitor our exposure to this risk and manage the underlying exposure both through the matching of financial assets and liabilities and through the use of financial instruments, including swaps, caps, forward starting swaps, and forward rate agreements for the net exposure. The instruments aim to stabilize funding costs by managing the exposure created by the differing maturities and interest rate structures of our financial assets and liabilities. We do not hold or issue derivative or other financial instruments for speculative purposes.

We monitor interest rate risk to achieve a predetermined level of matching between the interest rate structure of our financial assets and liabilities. Fixed-rate financial instruments, including receivables, debt, ABS certificates and other investments, are segregated from floating-rate instruments in evaluating the potential impact of changes in applicable interest rates. A sensitivity analysis was performed to compute the impact on fair value which would be caused by a hypothetical 10% change in the interest rates used to discount each category of financial assets and liabilities. The net impact on the fair value of the financial instruments and derivative instruments held as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, resulting from a hypothetical 10% change in interest rates, would be approximately \$2.5 million and \$11.3 million, respectively. For the sensitivity analysis the financial instruments are grouped according to the currency in which financial assets and liabilities are denominated and the applicable interest rate index. As a result, our interest rate risk sensitivity model may overstate the impact of interest rate fluctuations for such financial instruments, as consistently unfavorable movements of all interest rates are unlikely.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Our consolidated financial statements are included in this annual report beginning on page F-1.

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

We engaged Ernst & Young LLP to replace Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent auditors effective March 2011. There were no disagreements or reportable events requiring disclosure pursuant to Item 304(b) of Regulation S-K.

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision, and with the participation, of our management, including the President and Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2011. Based on that evaluation, the President and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the disclosure controls and procedures are effective to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by us is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our President and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting during the three months ended December 31, 2011 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Ernst & Young LLP, the member firms of Ernst & Young and their respective affiliates (collectively, the "Ernst & Young Entities") were appointed to serve as our independent auditors for the year ended December 31, 2011. Deloitte & Touche LLP, the member firms of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and their respective affiliates (collectively, the "Deloitte Entities") were appointed to serve as our independent auditors for the year ended December 31, 2010. We incurred the following fees for professional services performed by the Ernst & Young Entities and the Deloitte Entities for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively:

	2011	2010
Audit fees	\$ 519,000	\$ 677,000
Audit-related fees	871,000	866,000
Tax fees		
Total	\$ <u>1,390,000</u>	\$ <u>1,543,000</u>

"Audit Fees" are the aggregate fees billed by the Ernst & Young Entities in 2011 and the Deloitte Entities in 2010 for the audit of our consolidated annual financial statements, reviews of interim financial statements and attestation services that are provided in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements. "Audit-related fees" are fees charged by the Ernst & Young Entities in 2011 and the Deloitte Entities in 2010 for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of our financial statements and are not reported under "Audit Fees." This category comprises fees for the audit of agreed-upon procedure engagements and other attestation services subject to regulatory requirements. "Tax Fees" are fees for professional services rendered by the Ernst & Young Entities in 2011 and the Deloitte Entities in 2010 for tax compliance and tax advice on actual or contemplated transactions

Audit Committee's pre-approval policies and procedures

As a wholly-owned subsidiary of CNH Global, audit and non-audit services provided by our independent auditors are subject to CNH Global's Audit Committee pre-approval policies and procedures as described in the annual report on Form 20-F of CNH Global for the year ended December 31, 2011. During the year ended December 31, 2011, all audit and non-audit services provided by our independent auditors were pre-approved in accordance with such policies and procedures.

EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

- (a) The following documents are included as part of this annual report:
- 1. Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules

Our consolidated financial statements are included in this annual report beginning on page F-1.

2. Exhibits

The following documents are included as exhibits to this annual report.

Exhibit No.	Description
3.1	Certificate of Formation of CNH Capital LLC
3.2	Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of CNH Capital LLC
4.1	Indenture, dated as of November 4, 2011, by and among CNH Capital LLC, as issuer, the Guarantors named therein and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee, regarding 6.250% Notes due 2016
4.2	Form of 6.250% Note due 2016 (included in Exhibit 4.1)
4.3	Registration Rights Agreement, dated November 4, 2011, by and among CNH Capital LLC, the Guarantors named therein, Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated and BNP Paribas Securities Corp
10.1	Support Agreement, dated as of November 4, 2011, by and between CNH Capital LLC and CNH Global N.V.
10.2	Third Amended and Restated Wholesale and Parts CNH Capital Financing Agreement, dated November 3, 2011, by and between CNH America LLC and CNH Capital America LLC
10.3	Amended and Restated Wholesale and Parts CNH Capital Financing Agreement, dated November 3, 2011, by and between CNH Canada Ltd. and CNH Capital Canada Ltd.
10.4	Employment Agreement, dated April 6, 2009, by and between Steve C. Bierman and CNH America LLC
12.1	Statement regarding computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges
21.1	Subsidiaries of CNH Capital LLC

INDEX TO AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CNH CAPITAL LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

	Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	
Consolidated statements of income for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009	F-2
Consolidated statements of comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2011,	
2010 and 2009	F-3
Consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2011 and 2010	F-4
Consolidated statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009	F-6
Consolidated statements of changes in stockholder's equity for the years ended December 31, 2011,	
2010 and 2009	F-7
Notes to consolidated financial statements	F-8

Schedules Omitted

The following schedules are omitted because of the absence of conditions under which they are required or because the required information is included in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements:

I, II, III, IV and V

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholder of CNH Capital LLC:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of CNH Capital LLC and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31, 2011, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in stockholder's equity for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of CNH Capital LLC and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2011, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, on January 1, 2010, the Company changed its method of accounting and reporting for transfers of financial assets and consolidation of variable interest entities and applied the reporting requirements on a prospective basis.

As discussed in Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2011 the Company began to follow U.S. generally accepted accounting principles applicable to public companies as defined by the applicable accounting standards and related Securities and Exchange Commission regulations. As a result, the Company retrospectively adjusted previous periods' consolidated financial statements to account for income taxes on the separate return basis as if the Company had not been eligible to be included in a consolidated tax return with its parent.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP Milwaukee, Wisconsin

March 29, 2012

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholder of CNH Capital LLC:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of CNH Capital LLC and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31, 2010, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, cash flows, and changes in stockholder's equity for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of CNH Capital LLC and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, on January 1, 2010, the Company changed its method of accounting and reporting for transfers of financial assets and consolidation of variable interest entities and applied the reporting requirements on a prospective basis.

As discussed in Notes 2 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has changed its method of presenting comprehensive income in 2011 due to the adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-05, *Presentation of Comprehensive Income*. The change in presentation has been applied retrospectively to all periods presented.

As discussed in Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has begun to follow accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America applicable to public companies as defined by the applicable accounting standards and related Securities and Exchange Commission regulations. As a result, the accompanying 2010 and 2009 consolidated financial statements have been retrospectively adjusted to account for income taxes on the separate return basis as if the Company had not been eligible to be included in a consolidated tax return with its parent, and to present condensed consolidating financial information.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Milwaukee, Wisconsin

May 12, 2011 (March 29, 2012 as to the effects of the changes described in Note 16)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 2009 (In thousands)

		2011		2010		2009
REVENUES:						
Interest income on retail and other notes and finance leases	\$	454,874	5	- ,	\$	236,237
Interest income from affiliates		138,944		126,902		55,500
Gain on retail, wholesale and revolving credit notes sold				38		147,461
Servicing fee income		1,747		3,340		57,941
Rental income on operating leases		164,247		163,262		155,851
Other income		71,187		<u>75,250</u>		49,210
Total revenues		830,999		863,551	•	702,200
EXPENSES:						
Interest expense:						
Interest expense to third parties		224,189		232,448		77,568
Interest expense to affiliates		44,645		80,584		102,564
Total interest expense		268,834		313,032		180,132
Operating expenses:						
Fees charged by affiliates		62,945		61,464		57,192
Provision for credit losses		32,853		76,394		88,942
Other than temporary impairment of retained interests		815		4,108		37,468
Depreciation of equipment on operating leases		110,314		117,848		116,169
Other expenses		35,651		43,158		54,278
Total operating expenses		242,578		302,972		354,049
Total expenses		511,412		616,004		534,181
INCOME BEFORE TAXES		319,587		247,547		168,019
Income tax provision		118,053		85,067	-	52,301
NET INCOME		201,534		162,480		115,718
Net income attributed to the noncontrolling interest	_	(1,488)		(1,861)	_	(2,442)
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO CNH CAPITAL LLC	\$	200,046	\$	<u> 160,619</u>	\$	113,276

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHESIVE INCOME FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 2009 (In thousands)

	2011		2010		2009
\$	201,534	\$	162,480	\$	115,718
	(12,012)		20,260		43,601
	(388)		486		(278)
	(2,602)		3,407		20,141
	9,326		20,711		19,526
_	(11,25 <u>0</u>)		(15,848))	(6,032)
_	(16,926)		29,016		76,958
	184,608		191,496		192,676
_	(1,488)		(1,861))	(2,442)
\$ _	183,120	\$	189,635	\$	190,234
		\$ 201,534 (12,012) (388) (2,602) 9,326 (11,250) (16,926) 184,608 (1,488)	\$ 201,534 \$ (12,012) (388) (2,602) 9,326 (11,250) (16,926) 184,608 (1,488)	\$ 201,534 \$ 162,480 (12,012) 20,260 (388) 486 (2,602) 3,407 9,326 20,711 (11,250) (15,848 (16,926) 29,016 184,608 191,496 (1,488) (1,861)	\$ 201,534 \$ 162,480 \$ (12,012) 20,260 \$ (388) 486 \$ (2,602) 3,407 \$ 9,326 20,711 \$ (11,250) (15,848) \$ (16,926) 29,016 184,608 191,496 \$ (1,488) (1,861)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

(In thousands)

	2011	2010
ASSETS		
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 594,093	\$ 420,792
Restricted cash	767,359	773,254
Receivables, less allowance for credit losses of \$106,673 and \$118,730	9,386,549	8,627,213
Retained interests in securitized receivables	17,289	37,914
Affiliated accounts and notes receivable	193,917	133,419
Equipment on operating leases, net	647,617	613,893
Equipment held for sale	32,131	46,396
Goodwill	116,830	117,651
Other intangible assets, net	3,259	3,373
Other assets	142,107	109,584
TOTAL	\$ <u>11,901,151</u>	\$ <u>10,883,489</u>
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY		
LIABILITIES:		
Short-term debt (including current maturities of long-term debt)	\$ 4,796,035	\$ 3,875,932
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities	450,828	248,916
Affiliated debt	819,270	1,567,107
Long-term debt	4,587,773	4,043,897
Total liabilities	10,653,906	9,735,852
STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY:		
Member's capital		
Paid-in capital	836,721	836,721
Accumulated other comprehensive income	28,716	45,642
Retained earnings	<u>326,919</u>	<u>211,873</u>
Total CNH Capital LLC stockholder's equity	1,192,356	1,094,236
Noncontrolling interest	54,889	<u>53,401</u>
Total stockholder's equity	1,247,245	1,147,637
TOTAL	\$ <u>11,901,151</u>	\$ <u>10,883,489</u>

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010 (In thousands)

The following table presents certain assets and liabilities of consolidated variable interest entities ("VIEs"), which are included in the consolidated balance sheet above. The assets in the table include those assets that can only be used to settle obligations of consolidated VIEs. The liabilities in the table include third-party liabilities of the consolidated VIEs, for which creditors do not have recourse to the general credit of CNH Capital LLC.

	2011	2010
Restricted cash	\$ 738,478	\$ 743,931
Receivables, less allowance for credit losses of \$39,309 and \$42,246	7,823,615	7,029,265
Equipment on operating leases, net	94,018	89,556
TOTAL	\$ <u>8,656,111</u>	\$ <u>7,862,752</u>
Short-term debt (including current maturities of long-term debt)	\$ 4,583,407	\$ 3,547,338
Long-term debt	3,634,629	3,864,762
TOTAL	\$ <u>8,218,036</u>	\$ <u>7,412,100</u>

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 2009 (In thousands)

	2011	2010	2009
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:	Φ 201.524	¢ 162.490	e 115710
Net income	\$ 201,534	\$ 162,480	\$ 115,718
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities:			
Depreciation on property and equipment and equipment			
on operating leases	110,440	118,014	116,349
Amortization on intangibles	1,106	1,273	1,026
Provision for credit losses	32,853	76,394	88,942
Loss on disposal of software			446
Other than temporary impairment of retained interests	815	4,108	37,468
Gain on retail, wholesale and revolving credit notes sold		(38)	(147,461)
Deferred income tax expense	58,755	48,765	16,011
Changes in components of working capital:	,	,	,
Decrease (increase) in servicing fee receivables		2,789	(166)
Increase in affiliated accounts and notes receivables	(63,326)	(39,603)	(39,531)
(Increase) decrease in other assets and equipment held for sale	(20,360)	8,608	(5,078)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and other accrued liabilities	143,285	(53,012)	(50,165)
Increase in other, net		27,249	72,277
Net cash from operating activities	465,102	357,027	205,836
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:			
Cost of receivables acquired	(18,036,908)	(15,733,642)	(13,587,107)
Proceeds from sales of receivables		23,825	7,802,700
Collections of receivables	17,217,638	15,431,514	7,813,701
Decrease (increase) in restricted cash	1,986	(146,348)	37,749
Purchase of equipment on operating leases	(386,361)	(356,902)	(260,047)
Proceeds from disposal of equipment on operating leases	238,025	225,861	134,232
Purchase of asset-backed certificates			(58,919)
Principal pay down of asset-backed certificates			21,000
Purchase of software	(993)	(1,199)	(1,222)
Expenditures for property and equipment	(33)		(43)
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment	93		
Net cash (used in) from investing activities	(966,553)	(556,891)	1,902,044
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:			
Proceeds from issuance of affiliated debt	533,346		118,557
Payment of affiliated debt	(1,275,856)	(555,950)	(1,196,181)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt	4,101,882	2,295,152	407,772
Payment of long-term debt	(3,543,494)	(1,130,767)	(961,371)
Increase (decrease) in revolving credit facilities	943,874	(90,794)	(98,083)
Dividends paid to CNH America LLC	(85,000)	(295,000)	(150,000)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities	674,752	222,641	(1,879,306)
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS	173,301	22,777	228,574
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:			
Beginning of year	420,792	398,015	169,441
End of year	\$ 594,093	\$ 420,792	\$ 398,015
CASH PAID DURING THE YEAR FOR INTEREST	\$ <u>267,114</u>	\$ <u>420,792</u> \$ <u>311,707</u>	\$ <u></u>
	·	·	
CASH PAID DURING THE YEAR FOR TAXES	\$27,193	\$ <u>92,492</u>	\$40,577

CNH CAPITAL LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 AND 2009 (In thousands)

		Compa	ny Stoc						
				mulated Other					
	Member's Capital	Paid-in Capital	Compi	rehensive ne (Loss)		Retained Earnings	Noncontrolling Interest		Total
BALANCE – January 1, 2009	\$	\$ 836,721	\$	(23,556)	\$	389,649	\$	49,098	\$ 1,251,912
Dividends paid to CNH America LLC Comprehensive income (loss):						(150,000)			(150,000)
Net income						113,276		2,442	115,718
Translation adjustment				43,601		, 			43,601
Pension liability adjustment, net of tax Unrealized gain on retained interest,				(278)					(278)
net of tax				20,141					20,141
Derivative financial instruments:				10.526					10.526
Losses reclassed to earnings, net of tax Losses deferred, net of tax				19,526 (6,032)					19,526 (6,032)
,			_	(0,032)			_		(0,032)
Cumulative effect from change									
in accounting for other-than-temporary impairment on retained interests				(3,786)		3,786			
BALANCE – December 31, 2009		836,721	_	49,616		356,711	_	51,540	1,294,588
,		030,721				(295,000)			
Dividends paid to CNH America LLC Comprehensive income (loss):						(293,000)			(295,000)
Net income						160,619		1,861	162,480
Translation adjustment				20,260					20,260
Pension liability adjustment, net of tax				486					486
Unrealized gain on retained interests, net of tax				3,407					3,407
Derivative financial instruments:				3,407					3,407
Losses reclassed to earnings, net of tax				20,711					20,711
Losses deferred, net of tax				(15,848)					(15,848)
Cumulative effect from change in accounting for									
consolidation of certain variable interest entities			_	(32,990)	_	(10,457)	_		(43,447)
BALANCE – December 31, 2010		836,721		45,642		211,873		53,401	1,147,637
Comprehensive income (loss):									
Dividends paid to CNH America LLC						(85,000)			(85,000)
Net income						200,046		1,488	201,534
Translation adjustment				(12,012)					(12,012)
Pension liability adjustment, net of tax				(388)					(388)
Unrealized gain on retained interests, net of tax Derivative financial instruments:				(2,602)					(2,602)
Losses reclassed to earnings, net of tax				9,326					9,326
Losses deferred, net of tax			_	(11,250)			_		(11,250)
BALANCE – December 31, 2011	\$	\$ 836,721	\$ =	28,716	\$	326,919	\$ _	54,889	\$ <u>1,247,245</u>

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

NOTE 1: NATURE OF OPERATIONS

CNH Capital LLC and its wholly owned operating subsidiaries, including New Holland Credit Company, LLC, CNH Capital America LLC and CNH Capital Canada Ltd. (collectively, "CNH Capital" or the "Company"), are each a wholly owned subsidiary of CNH America LLC ("CNH America"), which is an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of CNH Global N.V. ("CNH"). CNH is incorporated in and under the laws of The Netherlands.

As of December 31, 2011, Fiat Industrial S.p.A. ("Fiat Industrial", and together with its subsidiaries, the "Fiat Industrial Group") owned approximately 88% of CNH outstanding common shares through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Fiat Netherlands Holding B.V. ("Fiat Netherlands").

On January 1, 2011, Fiat S.p.A. ("Fiat" and, together with its subsidiaries, the "Fiat Group") effected a "demerger" under Article 2506 of the Italian Civil Code. Pursuant to the demerger, Fiat transferred its ownership interest in Fiat Netherlands to a new holding company, Fiat Industrial, including Fiat's indirect ownership of CNH, as well as Fiat's truck and commercial vehicles business and its industrial and marine powertrain business. Consequently, as of January 1, 2011, CNH became a subsidiary of Fiat Industrial. In connection with the demerger transaction, shareholders of Fiat received shares of capital stock of Fiat Industrial. Accordingly, effective as of January 1, 2011, Fiat Industrial owned approximately 89% of CNH outstanding common shares through Fiat Netherlands.

CNH manufactures agricultural and construction equipment. CNH Capital provides financial services for CNH America and CNH Canada Ltd. (collectively, "CNH North America") customers located primarily in the United States and Canada. To support CNH North America's sales of agricultural and construction equipment products, the Company offers retail financing to end-use customers and wholesale financing to CNH North America equipment dealers, which are almost entirely independently owned. Wholesale financing consists primarily of dealer floorplan financing and allows dealers the ability to maintain a representative inventory of products. In addition, the Company provides financing to dealers for equipment used in dealer-owned rental yards, parts inventory, working capital, and other financing needs. The Company provides and administers retail financing, primarily retail installment sales contracts and finance leases, to end-use customers for the purchase or lease of new and used CNH North America equipment and other agricultural and construction equipment sold through CNH North America dealers and distributors. In addition, the Company purchases equipment from dealers that is leased to retail customers under operating lease agreements. Customers also use the Company's private-label revolving charge account products to purchase parts, service, rentals, implements, and attachments from CNH North America dealers. The Company also finances a variety of insurance and other products for end users and dealers in conjunction with the purchase of new and used equipment. As a captive finance company, the Company is reliant on the operations of CNH North America, its customers, and end-use customers.

The Company competes primarily with banks, finance companies, and other financial institutions. Typically, this competition is based upon financial products and services offered, customer service, financial terms and interest rates charged. The Company's long-term profitability is largely dependent on the cyclical nature of the agricultural and construction equipment industries and on prevailing interest rates.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation

The Company has prepared the accompanying consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP"). The consolidated financial statements include the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries. The consolidated financial statements are expressed in U.S. dollars. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company's subsidiaries in which the Company has a controlling financial interest and reflect the noncontrolling interests of the minority owners of the subsidiaries that are not fully owned for the periods presented, as applicable. A controlling financial interest may exist based on ownership of a majority of the voting interest of a subsidiary, or based on the Company's determination that it is the primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity ("VIE"). The primary beneficiary of a VIE is the party that has the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the economic performance of the entity and the obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits that could potentially be significant to the entity. The Company assesses whether it is the primary beneficiary on an ongoing basis, as prescribed by the accounting guidance on the consolidation of VIEs. The consolidated status of the VIEs with which the Company is involved may change as a result of such reassessments.

As of the beginning of 2010, CNH Capital adopted new accounting guidance related to the accounting for transfers of financial assets and the consolidation of VIEs. As a significant portion of the Company's securitization trusts and facilities are no longer exempt from consolidation under the new guidance, the Company was required to consolidate the receivables and related liabilities. These securitizations qualify as collateral for secured borrowings. The receivables remain on the balance sheet and are included in "Receivables". For additional information, see "New Accounting Pronouncements Adopted" below, "Note 3: Receivables" and "Note 7: Credit Facilities and Debt".

The Company adopted the guidance prospectively in 2010, and therefore, the financial statements prepared for 2010 and future periods will reflect the new accounting requirements, but the financial statements for periods ending on or before December 31, 2009 reflected the accounting guidance applicable during those periods. The Company's statement of operations for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 no longer reflect securitization income and initial gains or losses on new securitization transactions, but instead report interest income and other income associated with all securitized receivables, and interest expense associated with the debt issued by the securitization trusts and facilities. Therefore, 2011 and 2010 results are not comparable to prior period amounts. In addition, because the Company's new securitization transactions do not meet the requirements for derecognition under the new guidance and are accounted for as secured borrowings rather than asset sales, the cash flows from these transactions are presented in 2011 and 2010 as cash flows from financing activities rather than cash flows from operating or investing activities.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and reported amounts of revenues and expenses. Significant estimates in these consolidated financial statements include the residual values of equipment on operating leases, allowance for credit losses, and tax contingencies. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Finance and interest income on retail and other notes receivables and finance leases is recorded using the effective yield method. Deferred costs on the origination of financing receivables are recognized as a reduction in finance revenue over the expected lives of the receivables using the effective yield method. Recognition of income on receivables is suspended when management determines that collection of future income is not probable or when an account becomes 120 days delinquent, whichever occurs earlier. Income accrual is resumed if the receivable becomes contractually current and collection doubts are removed. Previously suspended income is recognized at that time. The Company applies cash received on nonaccrual financing receivables to first reduce any unrecognized interest and then the recorded investment and any other fees. Receivables are considered past due if the required principal and interest payments have not been received as of the date such payments were due. Delinquency is reported on receivables greater than 30 days past due. Charge-offs of principal amounts of receivables outstanding are deducted from the allowance at the point when it is determined to be probable that all amounts due will not be collected.

A substantial portion of the Company's interest income arises from retail sales programs offered by CNH North America on which finance charges are waived or below-market rate financing programs are offered. When the Company acquires retail installment sales contracts and finance leases subject to below-market interest rates, including waived interest rate financing, the Company is compensated by CNH North America in an amount equal to the present value of the difference between the payments at the customer rate and the payments at the market rate. This amount is initially recognized as an unearned finance charge and is recognized as interest income over the term of the retail notes and finance leases, and is included in "Interest income on retail and other notes and finance leases" in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.

For selected wholesale receivables, CNH North America compensates the Company for the difference between market interest rates and the amount paid by the dealer. The amounts recognized in 2011 and 2010 are included in "Interest income from affiliates" and in 2009 are included in either "Interest income from affiliates" or "Gain on retail, wholesale and revolving credit notes sold" in the accompanying consolidated statements of income based on the accounting guidance applicable during that year.

The Company is also compensated for lending funds to CNH North America. The amounts earned are included in "Interest income from affiliates" in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.

Income from operating leases is recognized over the term of the lease on a straight-line basis.

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company's non-U.S. subsidiaries maintain their books and accounting records using local currency as the functional currency. Assets and liabilities of these non-U.S. subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars at period-end exchange rates, and net exchange gains or losses resulting from such translation are included in "Accumulated other comprehensive income" in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Income and expense accounts of these non-U.S. subsidiaries are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, and gains and losses from foreign currency transactions are included in net income in the period that they arise.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less. The carrying value of cash equivalents approximates fair value because of the short maturity of these investments.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash includes principal and interest payments from wholesale, retail and revolving credit receivables owned by the consolidated VIEs that are payable to the investors in the asset-backed securities that issued debt of those entities, and cash pledged as a credit enhancement to those same investors. These amounts are held by depository banks in order to comply with contractual agreements.

Receivables and Receivable Sales

Receivables are recorded at face value, net of allowances for credit losses and deferred fees and costs. Allowances for credit losses are determined based on past experience with similar receivables including current and historical past due amounts, dealer termination rates, write-offs, collections and economic conditions.

Periodically, the Company sells or transfers retail, wholesale and revolving credit receivables to funding facilities or in securitization transactions. Prior to January 1, 2010, these transactions were primarily accounted for as sales. In the accordance with the new accounting guidance, adopted on January 1, 2010, regarding transfers of financial assets and the consolidation of VIEs, the majority of the retail, wholesale and revolving credit receivables sold in securitizations do not qualify as sales and are recorded as secured borrowings with no gains or losses recognized at the time of securitization.

For those receivable securitizations which continue to qualify as sales, the Company retains interest-only strips, servicing rights and cash reserve accounts, all of which are recorded at fair value as retained interests in the securitized receivables. Changes in these fair values are recorded in other accumulated comprehensive income as an unrealized gain or loss on available-for-sale securities. With regards to other-than-temporary impairments ("OTTI") of debt securities, any OTTI due to changes in the constant prepayment rate and the expected credit loss rate are included in net income. An OTTI due to a change in the discount rates would be included in "Accumulated other comprehensive income" in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Allowance for Credit Losses

The allowance for credit losses is established to cover probable losses on receivables owned by the Company and consists of two components, depending on whether the receivable has been individually identified as being impaired. The first component of the allowance for credit losses covers all or a portion of specific receivables reviewed by management for which the Company has determined it will not collect all of the contractual principal and interest. Receivables are individually reviewed for impairment based on, among other items, amounts outstanding, amounts past due, collateral values, days past due and prior collection history. These receivables are subject to impairment measurement at the loan level based either on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the receivables' effective interest rate or the fair value of the collateral for collateral-dependent receivables and

receivables for which foreclosure is deemed to be probable. When the values are lower than the carrying value of the receivables, impairment is recognized.

The second component of the allowance for credit losses covers all receivables that are not yet individually identifiable. The allowance for these receivables is based on aggregated portfolio evaluations, generally by financial product. The allowance for retail credit losses is based on loss forecast models that consider a variety of factors that include, but are not limited to, historical loss experience, collateral value, portfolio balance and delinquencies. The allowance for wholesale credit losses is based on loss forecast models that consider a variety of factors that include, but are not limited to, historical loss experience, collateral value, portfolio balance and dealer risk ratings. The loss forecast models are updated on a quarterly basis to incorporate information reflecting the current economic environment.

Charge-offs of principal amounts of receivables outstanding are deducted from the allowance at the point when it is determined to be probable that all amounts due will not be collected.

Equipment on Operating Leases

The Company purchases leases and equipment from CNH North America dealers and other independent third parties that have leased equipment to retail customers under operating leases. The Company's investment in operating leases is based on the purchase price paid for the equipment. Income from these operating leases is recognized over the term of the lease. The equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease to the estimated residual value at lease termination, which is estimated at the inception of the lease. Realization of the residual values is dependent on the Company's future ability to re-market the equipment under then prevailing market conditions. The Company continually evaluates whether events and circumstances have occurred which affect the estimated residual values of equipment on operating leases and adjusts estimated residual values if necessary. Management believes that the estimated residual values are realizable. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are the responsibility of the lessee.

Equipment returned to the Company upon termination of leases and held for subsequent sale or lease is recorded at the lower of net book value or estimated fair value of the equipment, less cost to sell, and is not depreciated.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate purchase price over the fair value of the net assets acquired. Goodwill is deemed to have an indefinite useful life and is reviewed for impairment at least annually. During 2011 and 2010, the Company performed its annual impairment review as of December 31, and concluded that there was no impairment in either year. Other intangible assets consist of software and are being amortized on a straight-line basis over five years.

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes is determined using the asset and liability method. The Company recognizes a current tax liability or asset for the estimated taxes payable or refundable on tax returns for the current year and tax contingencies estimated to be settled with taxing authorities within one year. A deferred tax liability or asset is recognized for the estimated future tax effects attributable to temporary differences and tax loss carry forwards. The measurement of current and deferred tax liabilities and assets is based on provisions of enacted tax law. Valuation allowances are recorded to reduce deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that a tax benefit will not be realized based on available evidence.

Derivatives

The Company's policy is to enter into derivative transactions to manage exposures that arise in the normal course of business and not for trading or speculative purposes. The Company records derivative financial instruments in the consolidated balance sheets as either an asset or liability measured at fair value. The fair value of the Company's interest rate derivatives is based on discounting expected cash flows, using market interest rates, over the remaining term of the instrument. Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are recognized in current income unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met. For derivative financial instruments designated to hedge

exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability, the gain or loss is recognized in income in the period of change together with the offsetting loss or gain on the related hedged item. For derivative financial instruments designated to hedge exposure to variable cash flows of a forecasted transaction, the effective portion of the derivative financial instrument's gain or loss is initially reported in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) and is subsequently reclassified into income when the forecasted transaction affects income. The ineffective portion of the gain or loss is reported in income immediately. For derivative financial instruments that are not designated as hedges but held as economic hedges, the gain or loss is recognized immediately into income.

For derivative financial instruments designated as hedges, the Company formally documents the hedging relationship to the hedged item and its risk management strategy for all derivatives designated as hedges. This includes linking all derivatives that are designated as fair value hedges to specific assets and liabilities contained in the consolidated balance sheets and linking cash flow hedges to specific forecasted transactions or variability of cash flow. The Company assesses the effectiveness of the hedging instrument both at inception and on an ongoing basis. If a derivative is determined not to be highly effective as a hedge, or the underlying hedged transaction is no longer probable of occurring, or the derivative is terminated, the hedge accounting described above is discontinued and the derivative is marked to fair value and recorded in income through the remainder of its term.

New Accounting Pronouncements Adopted

Troubled Debt Restructurings

In April 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued accounting guidance that clarifies creditors' account treatment and reporting obligations concerning troubled debt restructurings. A troubled debt restructuring occurs when a creditor grants a concession it would not otherwise consider to a debtor that is experiencing financial difficulties. The guidance clarifies what would be considered a concession by the creditor and financial difficulties of the debtor. Certain disclosures are required for transactions that qualify as troubled debt restructurings. This new guidance was effective for the Company on January 1, 2011. The disclosures required by this guidance have been included in these notes to the consolidated financial statements. For further information see "Note 3: Receivables".

Presentation of Comprehensive Income

In June 2011, the FASB issued new accounting guidance on the presentation of comprehensive income in financial statements. The new guidance removes current presentation options and requires entities to report components of comprehensive income in either a continuous statement of comprehensive income or two separate but consecutive statements. The new reporting required by this accounting guidance has been included in these financial statements.

Transfer of Financial Assets and Consolidation of VIEs

In June 2009, the FASB issued new accounting guidance which changes the accounting for transfers of financial assets. The guidance eliminates the concept of a qualifying special purpose entity ("QSPE"), changes the requirements for derecognizing financial assets, and requires additional disclosures by providing greater transparency about transfers of financial assets, including securitization transactions, and an entity's continuing involvement in and exposure to the risks related to transferred financial assets.

In June 2009, the FASB also issued new accounting guidance which amends the accounting for VIEs. The guidance changes the criteria for determining whether the consolidation of a VIE is required from a quantitative risk and rewards model to a qualitative model, based on control and economics. The guidance also eliminates the scope exception for QSPEs, increases the frequency for reassessing consolidation of VIEs and creates new disclosure requirements about an entity's involvement in a VIE.

The Company adopted the new guidance on January 1, 2010. As a significant portion of the Company's securitization trusts and facilities were no longer exempt from consolidation as QSPEs under the guidance, the Company reassessed these VIEs under the new qualitative model and determined it was the primary beneficiary, as the Company has both the power to direct the activities of the VIE that most significantly impact the VIE's economic performance and an obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits that could potentially be significant to the VIE. Therefore, the Company consolidated the receivables and related liabilities held by these VIEs based on the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities, as prescribed by the new guidance. The impact of the Company's adoption of the new guidance on January 1, 2010 is as follows:

	Adjustment for New Guidance					
Restricted cash	\$ 548,400					
Receivables less allowance for credit losses of \$59,090	5,558,535					
Retained interest	(475,302)					
Equipment held for sale	17,304					
Other assets	59,146					
Total assets	<u>5,708,083</u>					
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities	2,725					
Short-term debt	3,387,715					
Long-term debt	2,361,090					
Total liabilities	5,751,530					
Total equity	<u>(43,447</u>)					
Total liabilities and equity	\$ <u>5,708,083</u>					

The assets of the VIEs include restricted cash and certain receivables that are restricted to settle the obligations of those entities and are not expected to be available to the Company or its creditors. Liabilities of the consolidated VIEs include secured borrowings for which creditors or beneficial interest holders do not have recourse to the general credit of the Company.

The Company adopted the guidance prospectively in 2010 and, therefore, the financial statements prepared for 2010 and subsequent periods reflect the new accounting requirements, but the financial statements for periods ended on or before December 31, 2009 reflected the accounting guidance applicable during those periods. The Company's statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 no longer reflect securitization income and initial gains or losses on new securitization transactions, but instead report interest income and other income associated with all securitized receivables, and interest expense associated with the debt issued from the securitization trusts and facilities. Therefore, 2011 and 2010 results are not comparable to prior period amounts. In addition, because the Company's new securitization transactions do not meet the requirements for derecognition under the new guidance, and are accounted for as secured borrowings rather than asset sales, the cash flows from these transactions are presented in 2011 and 2010 as cash flows from financing transactions rather than cash flows from operating or investing activities. For further information regarding this new guidance, see "Note 3: Receivables", "Note 7: Credit Facilities and Debt", and "Note 9: Financial Instruments".

NOTE 3: RECEIVABLES

A summary of receivables included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2011, and 2010 is as follows:

	2011	2010
Wholesale notes and accounts	\$ 87,600	\$ 63,117
Retail notes	731,807	619,933
Finance leases	53,391	150,472
Restricted receivables	8,566,514	7,809,232
Other notes	82,098	132,117
Gross receivables	9,521,410	8,774,871
Less:		
Unearned finance charges	(28,188)	(28,928)
Allowance for credit losses	(106,673)	(118,730)
Total receivables, net	\$ <u>9,386,549</u>	\$ <u>8,627,213</u>

Wholesale notes and accounts receivable arise primarily from the financing of the sale of goods to dealers and distributors by CNH North America, and to a lesser extent, the financing of dealer operations. Under the standard terms of the wholesale receivable agreements, these receivables typically have "interest-free" periods of up to twelve months and stated original maturities of up to twenty-four months, with repayment accelerated upon the sale of the underlying equipment by the dealer. During the "interest-free" period, the Company is compensated by CNH North America for the difference between market interest rates and the amount paid by the dealer. After the expiration of any "interest-free" period, interest is charged to dealers on outstanding balances until the Company receives payment in full. The "interest-free" periods are determined based on the type of equipment sold and the time of year of the sale. Interest rates are set based on market factors and the prime rate or LIBOR. The Company evaluates and assesses dealers on an ongoing basis as to their credit worthiness. CNH North America may be obligated to repurchase the dealer's equipment upon cancellation or termination of the dealer's contract for such causes as change in ownership, closeout of the business, or default. There were no significant losses in 2011, 2010 or 2009 relating to the termination of dealer contracts.

The Company provides and administers financing for retail purchases of new and used equipment sold through CNH North America's dealer network. The terms of retail and other notes and finance leases generally range from two to six years, and interest rates on retail and other notes and finance leases vary depending on prevailing market interest rates and certain incentive programs offered by CNH North America.

Maturities of wholesale notes and accounts, retail and other notes, and finance leases as of December 31, 2011, are as follows:

2012	\$ 5,231,584
2013	1,451,636
2014	1,175,934
2015	917,656
2016 and thereafter	<u> 744,600</u>
	9,521,410
Less unearned finance charges	(28,188)
Total receivables, net of unearned finance charges	\$ <u>9,493,222</u>

It has been the Company's experience that substantial portions of retail receivables are repaid or sold before their contractual maturity dates. As a result, the above table should not be regarded as a forecast of future cash collections. Wholesale, retail, and finance lease receivables have significant concentrations of credit risk in the agricultural and construction business sectors. On a geographic basis, there is not a disproportionate concentration of credit risk in any area of the United States or Canada. The Company typically retains, as collateral, a security interest in the equipment associated with wholesale and retail notes receivable.

Restricted Receivables and Securitization

As part of its overall funding strategy, the Company periodically transfers certain financial receivables into VIEs that are special purpose entities ("SPEs") as part of its asset-backed securitization programs.

Beginning January 1, 2010, the Company adopted new accounting guidance related to the accounting for transfers of financial assets and the consolidation of VIEs. As a result of this new accounting guidance, SPEs utilized in securitization programs no longer meet the non-consolidation accounting criteria, and, as such, are accounted for as secured borrowings and are included in the consolidated balance sheet. The net incremental impact of adopting this new guidance as of January 1, 2010, was a \$5,708,083 increase to assets, \$5,751,530 increase to liabilities and \$43,447 decrease to equity. Refer to "Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies – New Accounting Pronouncements Adopted" for additional information.

SPEs utilized in the securitization programs differ from other entities included in the Company's consolidated financial statements because the assets they hold are legally isolated. For bankruptcy analysis purposes, the Company has sold the receivables to the SPEs in a true sale and the SPEs are separate legal entities. Upon transfer of the receivables to the SPEs, the receivables and certain cash flows derived from them become restricted for use in meeting obligations to the SPEs' creditors. The SPEs have ownership of cash balances that also have restrictions for the benefit of the SPEs' investors. The Company's interests in the SPEs' receivables are subordinate to the interests of third-party investors. None of the receivables that are directly or indirectly sold or transferred in any of these transactions are available to pay the Company's creditors.

The following table summarizes the restricted and off-book receivables and the related retained interests as of December 31, 2011, and 2010:

	Restricted	Receivables		Off-Book	Rec	eivables	Retained Interests				
	2011 2010			2011		2010		2011		2010	
Wholesale receivables	\$ 2,884,516	\$ 2,693,931	\$		\$		\$		\$		
Retail receivables	5,454,279	4,921,898		108,476		206,101		17,289		37,914	
Finance lease receivables	47,000										
Revolving account receivables	180,719	193,403	_		_		_		_		
Total	\$ <u>8,566,514</u>	\$ <u>7,809,232</u>	\$	108,476	\$	206,101					
Total retained interests							\$	17,289	\$	37,914	

Wholesale Receivables Securitizations

With regard to the wholesale receivable securitization programs, the Company sells eligible receivables on a revolving basis to structured master trust facilities which are limited-purpose, bankruptcy-remote SPEs. As of December 31, 2011, debt issued through the U.S. master trust facility consists of \$583 million term asset-backed notes issued in August 2009 with a three-year maturity, \$220 million term asset-backed notes issued January 2011 with a maturity of December 2012 and four 364-day conduit facilities renewable annually at the sole discretion of the purchasers; \$200 million renewable March 2012 (renewed in March 2012 until March 2013), \$500 million renewable July 2012, \$250 million renewable November 2012, and \$200 million senior and related subordinate interests renewable November 2012.

Debt issued through the Canadian master trust facility consists of a C\$586 million (\$574 million) conduit facility renewable December 2012 at the sole discretion of the investor.

These trusts were determined to be VIEs and, consequently the Company consolidates the securitization trusts. In its role as servicer, the Company has the power to direct the trusts' activities and an obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits that could potentially be significant to the trusts. The Company is the primary beneficiary of the trusts, and therefore the trusts were consolidated.

The Company's involvement with the securitization trusts includes servicing the wholesale receivables, retaining an undivided interest ("seller's interest") in the receivables and holding cash reserve accounts. The seller's interest in the trusts represents the Company's undivided interest in the receivables transferred to the trust. The Company maintains cash reserve accounts at predetermined amounts to provide security to investors in the event that cash collections from the receivables are not sufficient to remit principal and interest payments on the securities. The

investors and the securitization trusts have no recourse beyond the Company's retained interests for failure of debtors to pay when due. The Company's retained interests are subordinate to investors' interests.

For the U.S. wholesale securitization facility, in the year ended December, 31, 2009 the Company recognized gains on the sale of receivables of \$51,211. Collections reinvested into the facility in the year ended December, 31, 2009 were \$5,629,046. At December 31, 2009, there were no recognized servicing assets or liabilities associated with the facilities.

Each of the facilities contains minimum payment rate thresholds which, if breached, could preclude the Company from selling additional receivables originated on a prospective basis.

Retail Receivables Securitizations

Within the U.S. retail asset securitization programs, qualifying retail finance receivables are sold to limited purpose, bankruptcy-remote SPEs. In turn, these SPEs establish separate trusts to which the receivables are transferred in exchange for proceeds from asset-backed securities issued by the trusts. In Canada, the receivables are transferred directly to the trusts. These trusts were determined to be VIEs and, consequently, the Company consolidated all previously unconsolidated retail trusts upon the January 1, 2010 adoption of the new accounting guidance related to transfers of financial assets and the consolidation of VIE's. In its role as servicer, the Company has the power to direct the trusts' activities. Through its retained interests, the Company has an obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits that could potentially be significant to the trusts.

During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company executed \$3,193,597 and \$3,174,785, respectively, in retail asset-backed transactions in the U.S. and Canada. The securities in these transactions are backed by agricultural and construction equipment retail receivable contracts and finance leases originated through CNH North America's dealer network. The Company applied any proceeds from the securitizations to repay outstanding debt. At December 31, 2011, \$5,116,695 of asset-backed securities issued to investors were outstanding with a weighted average expected remaining maturity of 37 months. At December 31, 2010, \$4,708,584 of asset-backed securities issued to investors were outstanding with a weighted average expected remaining maturity between 36 and 37 months.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company securitized retail receivables with a net principal value of \$4,001,572 and recognized gains on these sales of receivables of \$67,646. Further, related to the retail securitizations, the Company received proceeds of \$3,731,628 and recorded \$31,304 in servicing fees for the year ended December 31, 2009.

The Company receives compensation for servicing the receivables transferred and earns other related ongoing income customary with the securitization programs. The Company also may retain all or a portion of the subordinated interests in the SPEs. No recourse provisions exist that allow holders of the asset-backed securities issued by the trusts to put those securities back to the Company although the Company provides customary representations and warranties that could give rise to an obligation to repurchase from the trusts any receivables for which there is a breach of the representations and warranties. Moreover, the Company does not guarantee any securities issued by the trusts. The trusts have a limited life and generally terminate upon final distribution of amounts owed to investors or upon exercise of a cleanup-call option by the Company, in its role as servicer.

The Company also has access to \$1,493,734 in committed asset-backed facilities through which it may sell on a monthly basis retail receivables generated in the United States and Canada. The Company has utilized these facilities in the past to fund the origination of receivables and has later repurchased and resold the receivables in the term ABS markets or found alternative financing for the receivables. The Company believes that it is probable that it will continue to regularly utilize public ABS markets. These facilities had an original term of two years and are renewable in the U.S. in September 2013 and in Canada in December 2012.

Three private retail transactions totaling \$108,476 and \$206,101 were not included in the Company's consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. These transactions continue to qualify as sales subsequent to the adoption of the new accounting guidance. Therefore, as these receivables are collected, the amount of off-book receivables will decrease.

Revolving Charge Account Securitizations

The Company, through a trust, securitizes originated revolving charge account receivables. The trust's facility limit is \$200 million, has an original two year term and is renewable in October 2012. Consistent with the wholesale and retail securitization programs, the Company determined the trust was a VIE and consequently was required to be consolidated, as the Company is the primary beneficiary.

The Company's continuing involvement with the securitization trust includes servicing the receivables and maintaining a cash reserve account, which provides security to investors in the event that cash collections from the receivables are not sufficient to remit principal and interest payments to the securities. The investors and the securitization trust have no recourse to the Company for failure of debtors to pay when due beyond the Company's retained interest assets. Further, the Company's retained interests are subordinate to the investors' interests.

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company recognized gains of \$9,616, on the sale of receivables and collections reinvested into the facility of \$705,365. At December 31, 2009, there were no recognized servicing assets or liabilities associated with the trusts.

Allowance for Credit Losses

The allowance for credit losses is established to cover probable losses for receivables owned by the Company and consists of two components, depending on whether the receivable has been individually identified as being impaired. The first component of the allowance for credit losses covers all or a portion of receivables specifically reviewed by management for which the Company has determined it will not collect all of the contractual principal and interest. Receivables are individually reviewed for impairment based on, among other items, amounts outstanding, amounts past due, collateral value, days past due and prior collection history. These receivables are subject to impairment measurement at the loan level based either on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the receivables' effective interest rate or the fair value of the collateral for collateral-dependent receivables and receivables for which foreclosure is deemed to be probable. When the values are lower than the carrying value of the receivables, impairment is recognized.

The second component of the allowance for credit losses covers all receivables that are not yet individually identifiable. The allowance for these receivables is based on aggregated portfolio evaluations, generally by financial product. The allowance for retail credit losses is based on loss forecast models that consider a variety of factors that include, but are not limited to, historical loss experience, collateral value, portfolio balance and delinquencies. The allowance for wholesale credit losses is based on loss forecast models that consider a variety of factors that include, but are not limited to, historical loss experience, collateral value, portfolio balance and dealer risk ratings. The loss forecast models are updated to incorporate information reflecting the current economic environment.

Charge-offs of principal amounts of receivables outstanding are deducted from the allowance at the point when it is determined to be probable that all amounts due will not be collected.

The Company's allowance for credit losses is segregated into three portfolio segments: retail, wholesale and other. A portfolio segment is the level at which the Company develops a systematic methodology for determining its allowance for credit losses. The retail segment includes retail and finance lease receivables. The wholesale segment includes wholesale financing to CNH North America dealers and the other portfolio includes the Company's commercial revolving accounts.

Further, the Company evaluates its portfolio segments by class of receivable: United States and Canada. Typically, the Company's finance receivables within a geographic area have similar risk profiles and methods for assessing and monitoring risk. These classes align with management reporting.

Allowance for credit losses activity for the year ended December 31, 2011 is as follows:

	Retail	Wholesale	Other	Total
Allowance for credit losses:				
Beginning balance Charge-offs Recoveries Provision Currency translation and other	\$ 73,123 (27,770) 5,850 33,353 (1,323)	\$ 31,148 (12,613) 447 (6,801) (18)	\$ 14,459 (12,770) 3,431 6,301 (144)	\$ 118,730 (53,153) 9,728 32,853 (1,485)
Ending balance	\$83,233	\$12,163	\$11,277	\$ <u>106,673</u>
Ending balance: individually evaluated for impairment	\$ 42,879	\$10,101	\$	\$52,980
Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impairment	\$40,354	\$	\$11,277	\$53,693
Receivables:				
Ending balance	\$ <u>6,258,289</u>	\$ <u>2,972,116</u>	\$ <u>262,817</u>	\$ <u>9,493,222</u>
Ending balance: individually evaluated for impairment	\$73,920	\$56,444	\$265	\$ <u>130,629</u>
Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impairment	\$ <u>6,184,369</u>	\$ <u>2,915,672</u>	\$ <u>262,552</u>	\$ <u>9,362,593</u>

Allowance for credit losses activity for the year ended December 31, 2010 is as follows:

	Retail	Wholesale	Other	Total
Allowance for credit losses:				
Beginning balance Cumulative effect from change in accounting for consolidation of certain VIEs				\$ 73,181 <u>59,090</u>
Adjusted beginning balance Charge-offs Recoveries Provision Currency translation and other				132,271 (94,201) 8,066 76,394 (3,800)
Ending balance	\$73,123	\$31,148	\$ <u>14,459</u>	\$ <u>118,730</u>
Ending balance: individually evaluated for impairment	\$ 42,465	\$ 27,222	\$ <u>110</u>	\$69,797
Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impairment	\$30,658	\$3,926	\$14,349	\$48,933
Receivables:				
Ending balance	\$ <u>5,708,497</u>	\$ <u>2,757,048</u>	\$ <u>280,398</u>	\$ <u>8,745,943</u>
Ending balance: individually evaluated for impairment	\$ 96,399	\$ 61,609	\$400	\$ <u>158,408</u>
Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impairment	\$ <u>5,612,098</u>	\$ <u>2,695,439</u>	\$ <u>279,998</u>	\$ <u>8,587,535</u>

As part of the on-going monitoring of the credit quality of the wholesale portfolio, the Company utilizes an internal credit scoring model that assigns a risk grade for each dealer. The scoring model considers strength of dealer's financial statements, payment history and audit performance. Each quarter, the Company updates its dealers' ratings and considers the ratings in the credit allowance analysis. A description of the general characteristics of the dealer's risk grades is as follows:

Grades A and B – Includes receivables to dealers that have significant capital strength, moderate leverage, stable earnings and growth, and excellent payment performance.

 $Grade\ C$ – Includes receivables to dealers with moderate credit risk. Dealers of this grade are differentiated from higher grades on a basis of leverage or payment performance.

Grade D – Includes receivables to dealers with moderate credit risk. These dealers may require higher monitoring due to weaker financial strength or payment performance.

A breakdown of the wholesale portfolio by its credit quality indicators as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

	201	1	2010
A	\$ 1,6	662,920 \$	1,333,589
В	8	97,914	829,490
C	2	87,793	415,262
D	<u>1</u>	23,489	178,707
Total	\$ <u>2,9</u>	72,116 \$	2,757,048

Utilizing an internal credit scoring model which considers customers' attributes, prior credit history and each retail transaction's attributes, the Company assigns a credit quality rating to each customer, by specific transaction, as part of the retail underwriting process. This rating is used in setting the interest rate on the transaction. The credit quality rating is not updated after the transaction is finalized. A description of the general characteristics of the customers' risk grades is as follows:

Titanium – Customers where the Company expects no collection risk or loss activity.

Platinum - Customers where the Company expects minimal, if any, collection risk or loss activity.

Gold, Silver, Bronze - Customers are defined as those with the potential for collection risk or loss activity.

A breakdown of the retail portfolio by the customer's risk grade at the time of origination as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

	2011	2010
Titanium	\$ 3,195,785	\$ 2,551,419
Platinum	1,837,604	1,780,518
Gold	999,950	1,039,255
Silver	197,108	269,422
Bronze	<u>27,842</u>	67,883
Total	\$ <u>6,258,289</u>	\$ <u>5,708,497</u>

The following tables present information at the level at which management assesses and monitors its credit risk. Receivables are considered past due if the required principal and interest payments have not been received as of the date such payments were due. Delinquency is reported on receivables greater than 30 days past due. The aging of receivables as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

								2011						
	30-59 Days 60-89 Days Past Due Past Due				Greater Than Total 90 Days Past Due					Current	F	Total Receivables	Recorded Investment > 90 Days and Accruing	
Retail														
United States	\$	21,547	\$	6,100	\$	30,720	\$	58,367	\$	5,162,963	\$	5,221,330	\$	3,257
Canada	\$	3,550	\$	975	\$	753	\$	5,278	\$	1,031,681	\$	1,036,959	\$	77
Wholesale														
United States	\$	1,232	\$	1,967	\$	818	\$	4,017	\$	2,266,517	\$	2,270,534	\$	362
Canada	\$	57	\$	14	\$	287	\$	358	\$	701,224	\$	701,582	\$	56
Total														
Retail	\$	25,097	\$	7,075	\$	31,473	\$	63,645	\$	6,194,644	\$	6,258,289	\$	3,334
Wholesale	\$	1,289	\$	1,981	\$	1,105	\$	4,375	\$	2,967,741	\$	2,972,116	\$	418

2010

		Days Due	89 Days ist Due	Greater Than 90 Days		ı	Total Past Due	Current		Total Receivables	Recorded Investment > 90 Days and Accruing		
Retail													
United States	\$ 3	36,504	\$ 13,548	\$	56,230	\$	106,282	\$	4,584,352	\$ 4,690,634	\$	6,349	
Canada	\$	5,559	\$ 2,229	\$	3,004	\$	10,792	\$	1,007,071	\$ 1,017,863	\$	1,464	
Wholesale													
United States	\$	969	\$ 145	\$	2,608	\$	3,722	\$	2,073,777	\$ 2,077,499	\$	175	
Canada	\$	584	\$ 	\$	190	\$	774	\$	678,775	\$ 679,549	\$	24	
Total													
Retail	\$ 4	12,063	\$ 15,777	\$	59,234	\$	117,074	\$	5,591,423	\$ 5,708,497	\$	7,813	
Wholesale	\$	1,553	\$ 145	\$	2,798	\$	4,496	\$	2,752,552	\$ 2,757,048	\$	199	

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company's recorded investment in impaired receivables individually evaluated for impairment and the related unpaid principal balances and allowances are as follows. Impaired receivables are receivables for which the Company has determined it will not collect all the principal and interest payments as per the terms of the original contract.

				2011				2010						
	Recorded Investment		P	Unpaid Principal Balance		Related Allowance		Recorded Investment		Unpaid Principal Balance		Related Allowance		
With no related allowance recorded														
Retail														
United States	\$	6,805	\$	6,791	\$		\$	9,609	\$	7,634	\$			
Canada	\$	303	\$	303	\$		\$	1,790	\$	1,244	\$			
Wholesale														
United States	\$		\$		\$		\$		\$		\$			
Canada	\$		\$		\$		\$		\$		\$			
With an allowance recorded														
Retail														
United States	\$	66,747	\$	61,300	\$	42,861	\$	84,312	\$	80,815	\$	42,138		
Canada	\$	65	\$	65	\$	18	\$	688	\$	688	\$	327		
Wholesale														
United States	\$	55,167	\$	53,168	\$	9,690	\$	61,078	\$	61,762	\$	26,700		
Canada	\$	1,277	\$	1,247	\$	411	\$	531	\$	528	\$	522		
Total														
Retail	\$	73,920	\$	68,459	\$	42,879	\$	96,399	\$	90,381	\$	42,465		
Wholesale	\$	56,444	\$	54,415	\$	10,101	\$	61,609	\$	62,290	\$	27,222		

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company's average recorded investment in impaired receivables individually evaluated for impairment (based on a thirteen month average) and the related interest income recognized are as follows:

	Average Recorded Investment		Interest Income Recognized	
With no related allowance recorded				
Retail				
United States	\$	2,741	\$	390
Canada	\$	355	\$	9
Wholesale				
United States	\$		\$	
Canada	\$		\$	
With an allowance recorded				
Retail				
United States	\$	81,927	\$	4,261
Canada	\$	71	\$	9
Wholesale				
United States	\$	64,061	\$	2,226
Canada	\$	4,173	\$	153
Total				
Retail	\$	85,094	\$	4,669
Wholesale	\$	68,234	\$	2,379

Recognition of income is generally suspended when management determines that collection of future income is not probable or when an account becomes 120 days delinquent, whichever occurs first. Interest accrual is resumed if the receivable becomes contractually current and collection becomes probable. Previously suspended income is recognized at that time. The receivables on nonaccrual status as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

	2011		2010			
	Retail	Wholesale	Total	Retail	Wholesale	Total
United States	\$ 54,798	\$ 53,168	\$ 107,966	\$ 49,881	\$ 61,762	\$ 111,643
Canada	\$ 676	\$ 1,247	\$ 1,923	\$ 1,540	\$ 528	\$ 2,068

Troubled Debt Restructurings

A restructuring of a receivable constitutes a troubled debt restructuring ("TDR") when the lender grants a concession it would not otherwise consider to a borrower experiencing financial difficulties. As a collateral based lender, the Company typically will repossess collateral in lieu of restructuring receivables. As such, for retail receivables, concessions are typically provided based on bankruptcy court proceedings. For wholesale receivables, concessions granted may include extended contract maturities, inclusion of interest only periods, modification of a contractual interest rate to a below market interest rate, extended skip payment periods and waiving of interest and principal.

TDRs are reviewed along with other receivables as part of management's ongoing evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance for credit losses. The allowance for credit losses attributable to TDRs is based on the most probable source of repayment, which is normally the liquidation of collateral. In determining collateral value, the Company estimates the current fair market value of the equipment collateral and considers credit enhancements such as additional collateral and third-party guarantees.

Before removing a receivable from TDR classification, a review of the borrower is conducted. If concerns exist about the future ability of the borrower to meet its obligations under the loans based on a credit review, the TDR classification is not removed from the receivable.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company has approximately 2,500 retail and finance lease receivable contracts that are in legal proceedings, primarily bankruptcies. The pre-modification value was \$82,700 and the post-modification value was \$53,300. The court has yet to determine the concessions in some of the outstanding cases that will be granted, if any. As the outcome of the bankruptcy cases is determined by the court based on available assets, subsequent defaults are unusual and were not material for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011.

For wholesale receivables, the Company restructured five wholesale agreements with a pre- and post-modification balance of approximately \$15,000. The wholesale TDRs that subsequently defaulted were immaterial.

Managed Portfolio

Historical loss and delinquency amounts for the Company's managed portfolio for 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

	Principal Amount of Receivables at December 31,	Principal More Than 30 Days Delinquent at December 31,	Net Credit Losses for the Year Ending December 31,
2011	·	·	·
Type of receivable:	Φ 2.072.116	Φ 4.275	Φ 12.166
Wholesale notes and accounts Retail and other notes and finance leases	\$ 2,972,116	\$ 4,375	\$ 12,166
	6,629,582 \$ 0,601,608	<u>71,683</u>	31,993 \$ 44.159
Total managed	\$ <u>9,601,698</u>	\$ <u>76,058</u>	\$ <u>44,159</u>
Comprised of:			
Receivables held in portfolio	\$ 9,493,222		
Sold: Retail	109 476		
	108,476		
Total managed	\$ <u>9,601,698</u>		
2010			
Type of receivable:			
Wholesale notes and accounts	\$ 2,757,048	\$ 4,496	\$ 11,248
Retail and other notes and finance leases	6,194,996	129,319	75,920
Total managed	\$ <u>8,952,044</u>	\$ <u>133,815</u>	\$ <u>87,168</u>
Comprised of:			
Receivables held in portfolio	\$ 8,745,943		
Sold:			
Retail and other notes and finance leases	<u>206,101</u>		
Total managed	\$ <u>8,952,044</u>		

Non-Cash Retail Receivables Operating and Investing Activities

Non-cash operating and investing activities include retail receivables of \$342,267 that were exchanged for retained interests in sold receivables in 2009.

NOTE 4: EQUIPMENT ON OPERATING LEASES

A summary of equipment on operating leases as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

	2011	2010	
Equipment on operating leases	\$ 830,607	\$ 812,051	
Less:			
Residual reserve	(599)	(3,782)	
Accumulated depreciation	(182,391)	(194,376)	
Equipment on operating leases, net	\$ <u>647,617</u>	\$ <u>613,893</u>	

Depreciation expense totaled \$110,314, \$117,848 and \$116,169 for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.

Lease payments owed to the Company for equipment under non-cancelable operating leases as of December 31, 2011 are as follows:

2012	\$ 93,024
2013	57,107
2014	24,120
2015	8,810
2016 and thereafter	1,729
Total	\$184,790

NOTE 5: GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

	2011	2010	
Balance, beginning of year	\$ 117,651	\$ 115,907	
Currency translation adjustment	(821)	1,744	
Balance, end of year	\$ <u>116,830</u>	\$ <u>117,651</u>	

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually. During 2011 and 2010, the Company performed its annual impairment review as of December 31 and concluded that there were no impairments in either year. The Company has no accumulated impairment losses at December 31, 2011.

Impairment testing for goodwill is performed at a reporting unit level using a two-step test. Under the first step of the goodwill impairment test, the Company's estimate of the fair value of the reporting unit is compared with its carrying value (including goodwill). If the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying value, an indication of goodwill impairment exists for the reporting unit and the Company must perform step two of the impairment test (measurement). Step two of the impairment test, when necessary, requires the identification and estimation of the fair value of the reporting unit's individual assets, including intangible assets with definite and indefinite lives regardless of whether such intangible assets are currently recorded as an asset of the reporting unit, and liabilities in order to calculate the implied fair value of the reporting unit's goodwill. Under step two, an impairment loss is recognized to the extent the carrying amount of the reporting unit's goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of goodwill.

To determine fair value, the Company utilizes the market approach valuation technique. The market approach measures fair value based on prices generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or liabilities. Under the market approach, the Company applies the guideline company method in estimating fair value. The guideline company method makes use of market price data of corporations whose stock is actively traded in a public, free and open market, either on an exchange or over-the-counter basis. Although it is clear no two companies are entirely alike, the corporations selected as guideline companies must be engaged in the same, or a similar, line of business or be subject to similar financial and business risks, including the opportunity for growth. The guideline company method of the market approach provides an indication of value by relating the equity or invested capital

(debt plus equity) of guideline companies to various measures of their earnings and cash flow, then applying such multiples to the business being valued.

As of December 31, 2011, the estimated fair value of the Company substantially exceeded the respective carrying value.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company's intangible asset and related accumulated amortization for its software is as follows:

	2011	2010
Software	\$ 24,076	\$ 23,103
Accumulated amortization	(20,817)	(19,730)
Software, net	\$ 3,259	\$ <u>3,373</u>

The Company recorded amortization expense of \$1,106, \$1,273 and \$1,026 during 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Based on the current amount of software subject to amortization, the estimated annual amortization expense for each of the succeeding five years is as follows: \$963 in 2012; \$775 in 2013; \$450 in 2014; \$265 in 2015; and \$118 in 2016.

NOTE 6: OTHER ASSETS

The components of other assets as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

	2011	2010
Derivative assets	\$ 3,598	\$ 8,027
Property and equipment, net	167	355
Deferred tax assets, net		23,604
Tax receivables	71,217	22,586
Prepaid assets	41,087	36,838
Other current assets	<u>26,038</u>	<u>18,174</u>
Total other assets	\$ <u>142,107</u>	\$ <u>109,584</u>

NOTE 7: CREDIT FACILITIES AND DEBT

Lenders of committed credit facilities have the obligation to make advances up to the facility amount. These facilities generally provide for facility fees on the total commitment, whether used or unused.

The following table summarizes the Company's debt and credit facilities, borrowings thereunder and availability at December 31, 2011:

-			2011		
	Maturity*	Total Facility/Debt	Short-Term Outstanding**	Long-Term Outstanding	Available
Committed ABCP Facilities					
Retail – U.S.	Sep 2013	\$ 1,200,000	\$ 91,640	\$ 277,760	\$ 830,600
Retail – Canada	Dec 2012	293,734	153,262		140,472
Commercial Revolving Accounts	Oct 2012	200,000	166,800		33,200
Wholesale VFN – U.S.	Various	1,150,000	1,150,000		
Wholesale VFN – Canada	Dec 2012	573,516	<u>488,010</u>		85,506
Subtotal		3,417,250	2,049,712	277,760	1,089,778
Third Party Debt					
Wholesale Term – U.S.	Various	803,250	803,250		
Amortizing Retail Term ABS – N.A.	Various	5,013,006	1,730,937	3,282,069	
Other ABS Financing – N.A.	Various	590,080	212,136	377,944	
Subtotal		6,406,336	2,746,323	3,660,013	
Unsecured Facility	2016	100,000			100,000
Unsecured Debt	2016	650,000		650,000	
Total credit facilities and debt		\$ <u>10,573,586</u>	\$ <u>4,796,035</u>	\$ <u>4,587,773</u>	\$ <u>1,189,778</u>

^{*} Maturity dates reflect maturities of the credit facility which may be different than the maturities of the advances under the facility.

A summary of the minimum annual repayments of long-term debt as of December 31, 2011, for 2013 and thereafter is as follows:

2013	\$ 1,459,352
2014	1,293,259
2015	916,722
2016	878,501
2017 and thereafter	39,939
Total	\$ <u>4,587,773</u>

^{*} Short-term outstanding includes current maturities of long-term debt.

The following table summarizes the Company's credit facilities, borrowings thereunder and availability at December 31, 2010:

_			2010		
	Maturity*	Total Facility/Debt	Short-Term Outstanding	Long-Term Outstanding	Available
Committed ABCP Facilities					
Retail – U.S.	Dec 2011	\$ 1,200,000	\$ 214,858	\$	\$ 985,142
Retail – Canada	Various	399,543	31,235	92,693	275,615
Commercial Revolving Accounts	Oct 2011	225,000	176,300		48,700
Wholesale VFN – U.S.	Nov 2011	1,250,000	1,250,000		
Wholesale VFN – Canada	Sep 2011	249,959	118,354		131,605
Subtotal		3,324,502	1,790,747	92,693	1,441,062
Third Party Debt					
Wholesale Term – U.S.	Jul 2012	583,250		583,250	
Wholesale Term – Canada	Dec 2012	325,976		325,976	
Amortizing Retail Term ABS – N.A.	Various	4,549,302	1,756,740	2,792,562	
Other ABS Financing – N.A	Various	<u>577,861</u>	328,445	<u>249,416</u>	
Subtotal		6,036,389	2,085,185	3,951,204	
Total credit facilities and debt		\$ <u>9,360,891</u>	\$ <u>3,875,932</u>	\$ <u>4,043,897</u>	\$ <u>1,441,062</u>

2010

Committed Asset-Backed Facilities

The Company has access to asset-backed commercial paper ("ABCP") facilities through which it may sell retail receivables. The Company utilizes these facilities to fund the origination of receivables and, per the terms of the facility, have later repurchased the receivables and either resold the receivables in the term ABS markets or found alternative financing for the receivables. Under these facilities, the maximum amount of proceeds that can be accessed at one time is \$1,493,734. Under the U.S. facility, if the receivables sold are not repurchased by the Company, the related debt is paid only as the underlying receivables are collected. Such receivables have maturities not exceeding 6 years. The Company believes that it is probable that these receivables will be repurchased and resold in the public ABS markets. Borrowings against these facilities accrue interest at prevailing asset-backed commercial paper rates.

The Company finances part of its wholesale receivable portfolios with the issue of Variable Funding Notes ("VFN"); these notes were privately subscribed by certain bank conduits. These notes accrue interest at prevailing asset-backed commercial paper rates.

Third Party Debt

Borrowings under third-party debt are a combination of both fixed rate and floating rate borrowings that bear interest at LIBOR plus an applicable margin.

Unsecured Facility

In July 2011, CNH Capital entered into a \$100 million five-year unsecured revolving credit facility.

Unsecured Debt

In July 2011, CNH Capital entered into a \$150 million five-year unsecured term loan at a floating rate based on LIBOR plus an applicable margin (3.20% as of December 31, 2011) due 2016.

In November 2011, CNH Capital issued \$500 million of debt securities at an annual fixed rate of 6.25% due 2016.

^{*} Maturity dates reflect maturities of the credit facility which may be different than the maturities of the advances under the facility.

^{**} Short-term outstanding includes current maturities of long-term debt.

Covenants

The unsecured indenture, among other things, limits the Company's ability and the ability of its restricted subsidiaries to incur secured debt or enter into certain sale leaseback transactions and limits the Company's ability and the ability of the guarantors to consolidate, merge, convey, transfer or lease all or substantially all of CNH Capital's or the guarantors' properties and assets.

Interest Rates

Borrowings against the ABCP facilities bear interest at prevailing ABCP rates. The weighted-average interest rate on total short-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2011 and 2010 was 1.89% and 2.37%, respectively. The weighted-average interest rate on total long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2011 and 2010 was 2.32% and 2.41%, respectively. The average rate is calculated using the actual rates at December 31, 2011 and 2010, weighted by the amount of outstanding borrowings of each debt instrument.

Support Agreement

CNH Capital LLC and CNH Global entered into a support agreement, dated November 4, 2011, pursuant to which CNH Global has agreed to, among other matters, (a) make cash capital contributions to CNH Capital LLC, to the extent that such payments are necessary to cause the ratio of (i) net earnings available for fixed charges to (ii) fixed charges of CNH Capital LLC and its subsidiaries to be not less than 1.05 for each fiscal quarter of CNH Capital LLC (with such ratio determined, on a consolidated basis and in accordance with U.S. GAAP, for such fiscal quarter and the immediately preceding three fiscal quarters taken as a whole), (b) generally maintain an ownership of at least fifty-one percent (51%) of the capital stock of CNH Capital LLC having voting power for the election of directors or managers and (c) cause CNH Capital LLC to have, as at the end of any fiscal quarter, a consolidated tangible net worth of at least \$50 million. CNH Global is required to cure, directly or indirectly, any deficiency in the ratio of net earnings available for fixed charges to fixed charges or in the consolidated tangible net worth not later than 90 days following the end of the fiscal quarter in which the deficiency occurred. This support agreement is not intended to be and is not a guarantee by CNH Global of any indebtedness or other obligation of CNH Capital LLC. The obligations of CNH Global to CNH Capital LLC pursuant to this support agreement are to CNH Capital LLC only and do not run to, and are not enforceable directly by, any creditor of CNH Capital LLC. No payment by CNH Global was required under this support agreement since its inception.

NOTE 8: INCOME TAXES

The income and expenses of the Company and certain of its domestic subsidiaries are included in the consolidated income tax return of Case New Holland Inc, a wholly owned subsidiary of CNH, and parent of CNH America. The Company's Canadian subsidiaries file separate income tax returns, as do certain domestic subsidiaries. The Company and certain of its domestic subsidiaries are LLCs and, as a result, incur no income tax liability on a standalone basis for tax purposes. However, for financial reporting, all tax accounts have been disclosed and the income tax expense is reflective for all of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements.

The sources of income before taxes for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 are as follows:

	2011	2010	2009
Domestic	\$ 243,365	\$ 171,164	\$ 103,587
Foreign	<u>76,222</u>	76,383	64,432
Income before taxes	\$ 319,587	\$ 247,547	\$ 168,019

The provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 is as follows:

	2011	2010	2009
Current income tax expense:			
Domestic	\$ 40,866	\$ 31,395	\$ 10,626
Foreign	18,432	<u>4,907</u>	25,664
Total current income tax expense	59,298	36,302	36,290
Deferred income tax expense (benefit):			
Domestic	55,790	39,490	26,089
Foreign	<u>2,965</u>	9,275	(10,078)
Total deferred income tax expense	58,755	48,765	16,011
Total tax provision	\$ <u>118,053</u>	\$ <u>85,067</u>	\$ <u>52,301</u>

A reconciliation of CNH's statutory and effective income tax rate for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 is as follows:

	2011	2010	2009
Tax provision at statutory rate	35.0%	35.0%	35.0%
State and foreign taxes	1.8	3.5	1.2
Tax contingencies	.5	(4.0)	(4.3)
Tax credits and incentives	(.2)	(.2)	(.4)
Tax rate and legislative changes		(.1)	.1
Other	(.2)	2	(.5)
Total tax provision effective rate	<u>36.9</u> %	<u>34.4</u> %	<u>31.1</u> %

The components of net deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

	2011	2010	
Deferred tax assets:			
Pension, postretirement and post employment benefits	\$ 4,066	\$ 4,005	
Marketing and sales incentive programs	53,969	22,029	
Allowance for credit losses	36,349	41,336	
Other accrued liabilities	32,028	77,091	
Tax loss carrybacks	<u>8,753</u>	4,527	
Total deferred tax assets	\$ <u>135,165</u>	\$ <u>148,988</u>	
Deferred tax liabilities:			
Equipment on operating lease	\$ 167,971	\$ 121,605	
Other		3,779	
Total deferred tax liabilities	\$ <u>167,971</u>	\$ <u>125,384</u>	
Net deferred tax (liability) asset, net (1)	\$ <u>(32,806)</u>	\$ <u>23,604</u>	

⁽¹⁾ The net deferred tax liability in 2011 is included in "Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities" and the net deferred tax asset in 2010 is included in "Other assets" in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Deferred taxes are provided to reflect timing differences between the financial and tax basis of assets and liabilities and tax carryforwards using currently enacted tax rates and laws. Management believes it is more likely than not the benefit of the deferred tax assets will be realized.

A reconciliation of the gross amounts of tax contingencies at the beginning and end of the year is as follows:

		2011		2010	2009
Balance, beginning of year	\$	4,848	\$	15,385	\$ 17,385
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year		2,239			1,420
Reductions for tax positions of prior years		(180)		(8,276)	(3,420)
Settlements	_		_	(2,261)	
Balance, end of year	\$ _	6,907	\$	4,848	\$ 15,385

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would affect the annual effective income tax rate is \$2,010.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. During the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, the Company recognized approximately \$352, (\$17,580), and \$5,652, respectively, in interest and penalties. The Company had approximately \$3,233, \$3,271, and \$20,752 for the expected future payment of interest and penalties accrued at December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.

The Company is currently under various income tax examinations by taxing authorities for years 2002 through 2006 that are anticipated to be completed by the end of 2013. As of December 31, 2011, certain taxing authorities have proposed adjustments to the Company's transfer pricing/management service fee positions. The Company anticipates that it is reasonably possible to reach a settlement with competent authority by the end of 2013 that may result in a tax deficiency assessment for which there should be correlative relief under competent authority. The potential tax deficiency assessments could have an effect on the Company's 2013 annual cash flows in the range of \$5,000 to \$6,000. The Company has provided for the unrecognized tax benefits and related competent authority recovery according to current guidance.

The Company has not provided deferred taxes on \$267,300 of undistributed earnings of non-U.S. subsidiaries at December 31, 2011, as the Company's intention continues to be to indefinitely reinvest these earnings in the non-U.S. operations.

NOTE 9: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company may elect to measure financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. This fair value option would be applied on an instrument-by-instrument basis with changes in fair value reported in earnings. The election can be made at the acquisition of an eligible financial asset, financial liability, or firm commitment, or when certain specified reconsideration events occur. The fair value election may not be revoked once made. The Company did not elect the fair value measurement option for eligible items.

Fair-Value Hierarchy

The hierarchy of valuation techniques is based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect the Company's market assumptions. These two types of inputs have created the following fair-value hierarchy:

Level 1 – Quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets.

Level 2 – Quoted prices for *similar* instruments in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active; and model-derived valuations in which all significant inputs and significant value drivers are observable in active markets.

Level 3 – Valuations derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant inputs or significant value drivers are *unobservable*.

This hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when available.

Determination of Fair Value

When available, the Company uses quoted market prices to determine fair value and classifies such items in Level 1. In some cases where a market price is not available, the Company will make use of observable market based inputs to calculate fair value, in which case the items are classified in Level 2.

If quoted or observable market prices are not available, fair value is based upon internally developed valuation techniques that use, where possible, current market-based or independently sourced market parameters such as interest rates, currency rates, or yield curves. Items valued using such internally generated valuation techniques are classified according to the lowest level input or value driver that is significant to the valuation. Thus, an item may be classified in Level 3 even though there may be some significant inputs that are readily observable.

The following section describes the valuation methodologies used by the Company to measure various financial instruments at fair value, including an indication of the level in the fair value hierarchy in which each instrument is generally classified. Where appropriate the description includes details of the valuation models, and the key inputs to those models as well as any significant assumptions.

Interest Rate Derivatives

The Company utilizes derivative instruments to mitigate its exposure to interest rate risk. Derivatives used as hedges are effective at reducing the risk associated with the exposure being hedged and are designated as a hedge at the inception of the derivative contract. The Company does not hold or issue derivative or other financial instruments for speculative purposes. The credit and market risk for the interest rate hedges is reduced through diversification among counterparties with high credit ratings. Derivative instruments are generally classified in Level 2 or 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The cash flows underlying all derivative contracts were recorded in operating activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows.

The Company has entered into interest rate derivatives in order to manage interest rate exposures arising in the normal course of business. Interest rate derivatives that have been designated as cash flow hedging relationships are being used by the Company to mitigate the risk of rising interest rates related to the anticipated issuance of shortterm LIBOR based debt in future periods. Further, the Company uses these swaps to mitigate the risk of rising interest rates related to the variable-rate debt in certain ABS trusts associated with its retail securitization programs. Gains and losses on these instruments, to the extent that the hedge relationship has been effective, are deferred in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) and recognized in interest expense over the period in which the Company recognizes interest expense on the related debt. The ineffectiveness is recorded in "Other expenses" in the consolidated statements of income. For the year ending December 31, 2009, the Company recorded losses of \$13,392, related to the discontinuance of cash flow hedge accounting for instances where the forecasted transactions were no longer probable and are recorded in "Other expenses" in the consolidated statements of income. There were no such losses related to the discontinuance of cash flow hedge accounting for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010. The maximum length of time over which the Company is hedging its interest rate exposure through the use of derivative instruments designated in cash flow hedge relationships is 55 months. The after-tax losses deferred in accumulated other comprehensive income that will be recognized in interest expense over the next twelve months is approximately \$4,355.

The Company also enters into offsetting interest rate derivatives with substantially similar terms that are not designated as hedging instruments to mitigate interest rate risk related to the Company's ABCP facilities and various ABS trusts. These facilities and trusts require the Company to enter into interest rate derivatives. To ensure that these transactions do not result in the Company being exposed to this risk, the Company enters into a compensating position. Unrealized and realized gains and losses resulting from fair value changes in these instruments are recognized directly in income and were insignificant for 2011, 2010 and 2009.

As a result of the accounting guidance adopted January 1, 2010, interest rate derivatives, which were held by SPEs are now consolidated, were recorded as part of the adoption adjustment. The table below summarizes the impact of the adoption specific to interest rate derivatives and the location on the balance sheet.

	Janu	uary 1, 2010
Other assets	\$	2,620
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities	\$	24,316
Accumulated other comprehensive income (net of tax of \$8,808)	\$	(14,168)

Most of the Company's interest rate derivatives are considered Level 2. The fair market value of these derivatives is calculated using market data input and can be compared to actively traded derivatives. The future notional of some of the Company's interest rate derivatives is not known in advance. These derivatives are considered Level 3 derivatives. The fair market value of these derivatives is calculated using market data input and a forecasted future notional balance. The total notional amount of the Company's interest rate derivatives was approximately \$1,602,710 and \$1,948,760 at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Financial Statement Impact of the Company's Derivatives

The fair values of the Company's interest rate derivatives as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 in the consolidated balance sheets are recorded as follows:

Davinstinas Dasignatad as Hadging Instruments	2	2011	2010
Derivatives Designated as Hedging Instruments: Derivative assets:			
Other assets	\$	80	\$ 741
Derivative liabilities: Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities	\$	19	\$ 5,375
Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments:			
Derivative assets: Other assets	\$	3,518	\$ 6,888
Derivative liabilities: Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities	\$	3,585	\$ 7,250

Pre-tax gains (losses) on the consolidated statements of income related to the Company's interest rate derivatives for the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are recorded in the following accounts:

		2011	2010
Fair Value Hedges Other expenses	\$		\$ (3,499)
Cash Flow Hedges Recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (Effective Portion)	\$	(19,818)	\$ (26,268)
Reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (Effective Portion) Interest expense to third parties	\$	(17,191)	\$ (33,925)
Recognized directly in income (Ineffective Portion) Other expenses	\$	(278)	\$ (552)
Not Designated as Hedges Other expenses	\$	(751)	\$

Retained Interests in Securitized Assets

Beginning January 1, 2010, with the adoption of the new accounting guidance related to VIEs, the Company reclassified the retained interests to receivables for transactions that were consolidated under this guidance. For transactions that were considered sales and are off-book, the Company carried the retained interest at estimated fair value, which it determined by discounting the projected cash flows over the expected life of the assets sold in connection with such transactions using prepayment, default, loss and interest rate assumptions. The Company recognized declines in the value of its retained interests, and resulting charges to income or equity, when their fair value was less than carrying value. The portion of the decline, from discount rates exceeding those in the initial transaction was charged to equity. All other credit related declines were charged to income. Assumptions used to determine fair values of retained interests were based on internal evaluations and, although the Company believed its methodology was reasonable, actual results could differ from its expectations. Retained interests in securitized assets are generally classified in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, retained interests in securitized assets are \$17,289 and \$37,914, respectively.

Key assumptions utilized in measuring the initial fair value of retained interests for securitizations completed during 2009 were as follows:

	Range	weighted Average
Constant prepayment rate	15.00%-20.00%	19.31%
Expected credit loss rate	0.59% - 1.50%	0.79%
Discount rate	9.00% - 17.00%	14.06%
Remaining maturity in months	13-32	25

The fair value is compared to the carrying value of the retained interests. If changes in credit-related rates result in an excess of carrying value over fair value, an impairment of the retained interests is recorded with a corresponding offset to income. If changes in the discount rates result in an excess of carrying value over fair value, an impairment to the retained interest is recorded with the offset included in "Accumulated other comprehensive income" in the consolidated balance sheet. Based on this analysis, the Company reduced the carrying value of its retained interests by \$37,468 in 2009.

Items Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

The following tables present for each of the fair-value hierarchy levels the Company's assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2011 and 2010:

		Level 2	Level 3		To	otal	
	2011	2010	2011	2010	2011	2010	
Assets							
Interest rate derivatives	\$ 3,43	8 \$ 7,629	\$ 160	\$	\$ 3,598	\$ 7,629	
Retained interests		<u> </u>	17,289	37,914	17,289	37,914	
Total assets	\$3,43	<u>8</u> \$ <u>7,629</u>	\$ <u>17,449</u>	\$ <u>37,914</u>	\$ <u>20,887</u>	\$ <u>45,543</u>	
Liabilities							
Interest rate derivatives	\$3,45	9 \$ 7,250	\$ <u>145</u>	\$5,375	\$ 3,604	\$ <u>12,625</u>	
Total liabilities	\$ <u>3,45</u>	9 \$7,250	\$ <u>145</u>	\$ <u>5,375</u>	\$ <u>3,604</u>	\$ <u>12,625</u>	

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 hierarchy levels.

The following table presents the changes in the Level 3 fair-value category for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010:

	Retained Interests		Derivative Financial Istruments
Balance at January 1, 2010	\$ 968,371	\$	(1,645)
Total gains or losses (realized / unrealized):			
Impact from accounting change	(475,302)		(24,316)
Impact from accounting change – collateralized wholesale receivables	(394,037)		
Included in earnings	1,130		20,586
Included in other comprehensive (loss) income	5,706		
Settlements	<u>(67,954</u>)	_	
Balance at December 31, 2010	\$ 37,914	\$	(5,375)
Total gains or losses (realized / unrealized):			
Included in earnings	299		5,390
Included in other comprehensive (loss) income	1,183		
Settlements	(22,107)	_	
Balance at December 31, 2011	\$ 17,289	\$	15

Fair Value of Other Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, floating-rate affiliated accounts and notes receivable, accounts payable and other accrued liabilities, floating-rate short-term debt, floating-rate affiliated debt and floating-rate long-term debt was assumed to approximate its fair value.

Financial Instruments Not Carried at Fair Value

The carrying amount and estimated fair value of assets and liabilities considered financial instruments as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

	20	11	20	10	
	Carrying Estimated Amount Fair Value		Carrying Amount	Estimated Fair Value	
Receivables	\$ 9,386,549	\$ 9,710,124	\$ 8,627,213	\$ 8,258,863	
Short-term debt	4,796,035	4,796,035	3,875,932	3,799,842	
Affiliated debt	819,270	823,028	1,567,107	1,587,538	
Long-term debt	4,587,773	4,648,139	4,043,897	4,067,386	

Financial Assets

The fair value of receivables was based on discounting the estimated future payments at prevailing market rates.

Financial Liabilities

The fair values of fixed-rate debt were based on current market quotes for identical or similar borrowings and credit risk.

NOTE 10: ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

	:	2011		2010
Cumulative translation adjustment	\$	43,836	\$	55,848
Pension liability adjustment net of taxes of \$3,267 and \$3,089		(5,394)		(5,006)
Unrealized gains on retained interests, net of taxes of \$1,959 and \$3,698		3,234		5,836
Unrealized loss on derivative financial instruments, net of taxes of				
\$6,957 and \$6,532	_	(12,960)	_	(11,036)
Total	\$ _	28,716	\$_	45,642

NOTE 11: SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

The Company's segment data is based on disclosure requirements of accounting guidance on segment reporting, which requires financial information be reported on the basis that is used internally for measuring segment performance. The Company's reportable segments are strategic business units that are organized around differences in geographic areas. Each segment is managed separately as they require different knowledge of regulatory environments and marketing strategies. The operating segments offer primarily the same services within each of the respective segments.

A summary of the Company's reportable segment information is as follows:

	2011	2010	2009
Revenues			
United States	\$ 641,252	\$ 681,698	\$ 552,402
Canada	<u> 189,747</u>	<u>181,853</u>	149,798
Total	\$ <u>830,999</u>	\$ <u>863,551</u>	\$
Interest expense			
United States	\$ 207,657	\$ 255,316	\$ 139,009
Canada	61,177	57,716	41,123
Total	\$ <u>268,834</u>	\$313,032	\$180,132_
Segment profit			
United States	\$ 146,709	\$ 100,291	\$ 66,931
Canada	<u>54,825</u>	62,219	48,849
Total	\$ <u>201,534</u>	\$ <u>162,510</u>	\$ <u>115,780</u>
Depreciation and amortization			
United States	\$ 78,568	\$ 90,041	\$ 94,804
Canada	32,978	29,246	22,571
Total	\$ <u>111,546</u>	\$ <u>119,287</u>	\$ <u>117,375</u>

	2011	2010	2009	
Expenditures for equipment on operating leases and for non-lease assets				
United States	\$ 292,823	\$ 268,593	\$ 210,811	
Canada	93,538	88,309	49,236	
Total	\$ 386,361	\$356,902	\$260,047	
Segment assets				
United States	\$ 9,654,594	\$ 8,683,991	\$ 3,617,870	
Canada	2,358,198	2,307,319	1,304,919	
Total	\$ <u>12,012,792</u>	\$ <u>10,991,310</u>	\$ <u>4,922,789</u>	
Provision for credit losses				
United States	\$ 28,974	\$ 74,370	\$ 85,881	
Canada	<u>3,879</u>	2,024	3,061	
Total	\$32,853	\$76,394	\$88,942	
Managed Portfolio				
United States	\$ 7,827,253	\$ 7,214,953	\$ 6,923,772	
Canada	1,774,445	1,737,091	1,643,332	
Total	\$ <u>9,601,698</u>	\$ <u>8,952,044</u>	\$ <u>8,567,104</u>	
	2011	2010	2009	
Reconciliation:	2011	2010	2009	
Segment profit				
Profit from segments	\$ 201,534	\$ 162,510	\$ 115,780	
Less: inter-segment balances		(30)	(62)	
Total	\$ <u>201,534</u>	\$ <u>162,480</u>	\$ <u>115,718</u>	
Segment assets				
Assets from segments	\$ 12,012,792	\$ 10,991,310	\$ 4,922,789	
Less: inter-segment balances	(6,269)	(2,449)	(3,138)	
Less: investment in subsidiaries	(105,372)	(105,372)	(105,372)	
Total	\$ <u>11,901,151</u>	\$ <u>10,883,489</u>	\$ <u>4,814,279</u>	

NOTE 12: RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS / AFFILIATED DEBT

The Company receives compensation from CNH North America for retail installment sales contracts and finance leases that were created under certain low-rate financing programs and interest waiver programs offered to customers by CNH North America. The amounts recognized from CNH North America for below-market interest rate financing are included in "Interest income on retail and other notes and finance leases" in the accompanying consolidated statements of income, and was \$216,544, \$227,208 and \$112,678 in 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.

For selected operating leases, CNH North America compensates the Company for the difference between the market rental rates and the amount paid by the customer. In 2011, 2010, and 2009, the amounts recognized from CNH North America for these operating leases is \$26,518, \$22,273, and \$17,447, respectively, and is included in "Rental income on operating leases" in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.

Similarly, for selected wholesale receivables, CNH North America compensates the Company for the difference between market rates and the amount paid by the dealer. In 2011, 2010, and 2009, the amount recognized by CNH North America for these wholesale receivables is \$135,294, \$115,352, and \$44,216, respectively, and are included in "Interest income from affiliates". In 2009, \$51,211 is included in "Gain on retail, wholesale and revolving credit notes sold" in the accompanying consolidated statements of income based on whether the receivables were retained or sold. No gains were reported in 2011 and 2010 due to the new accounting change.

The Company is also compensated for lending funds to CNH North America and other affiliates for various purposes.

The summary of the sources included in "Interest income from affiliates" in the accompanying consolidated statements of income at December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 is as follows:

	2011	2010	2009
Wholesale subsidy – CNH North America	\$ 135,294	\$ 115,353	\$ 44,216
Wholesale subsidy – other affiliates	1,928		
Lending funds – CNH North America	1,700	10,329	9,977
Lending funds – other affiliates	22	1,220	1,307
Total interest income from affiliates	\$ <u>138,944</u>	\$ <u>126,902</u>	\$55,500

Miscellaneous operating expenses charged by CNH America represent all personnel and administrative tasks CNH America performs on behalf of the Company.

For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, the summary of "Fees charged by affiliates" in the accompanying consolidated statements of income is as follows:

		2011		2010		2009
Miscellaneous operating expenses – CNH America	\$	61,700	\$	61,164	\$	57,167
Miscellaneous operating expenses – CNH Global N.V.		1,220		275		
Miscellaneous operating expenses – Fiat	_	25		25	_	25
Total fees charged by affiliates	\$ _	62,945	\$ _	61,464	\$ _	57,192

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company has various accounts and notes receivable and debt with the following affiliates:

	2011				2010	
	Rate	Maturity	Amount	Rate	Maturity	Amount
Affiliated receivables from:						
CNH America	2.50%	\$	65,335	2.46%	\$	43,780
CNH Canada Ltd.	1.33%		115,816	3.30%		75,938
Other affiliates	2.50%		12,766	2.46%		13,701
Total affiliated receivables		\$	193,917		\$	<u> 133,419</u>
Affiliated debt owed to:						
CNH America	2.50%-3.18%	Various \$	525,927	2.46%-4.44%	Various \$	5 1,104,257
Fiat	3.38%-7.00%	Various	293,343	4.38%-7.00%	Various	462,850
Total affiliated debt		\$	819,270		\$	<u> 1,567,107</u>

As a consequence of the Fiat demerger, the credit facilities provided by Fiat treasury subsidiaries which were outstanding as of December 31, 2010 were assigned to Fiat Industrial treasury subsidiaries on January 1, 2011. As a result of this assignment, the Company has no residual borrowing outstanding with Fiat treasury subsidiaries as of close of business January 1, 2011.

Maturities of affiliated debt as of December 31, 2011, are as follows:

2012	\$ 735,732
2013	62,487
2014	19,582
2015	1,469
2016 and thereafter	
Total	\$ <u>819,270</u>

Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities of \$24,221 and \$5,643, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, were payable to related parties. Interest expense to related affiliates was \$44,645, \$80,584 and \$102,564, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009.

CNH Canada Ltd., an affiliated entity, owns 74,800,000 shares of preferred stock in CNH Capital Canada Ltd, one of the Company's subsidiaries. This is recorded in "Noncontrolling interest" in the stockholder's equity in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. These shares earn dividends of LIBOR plus 1.2% per annum. The dividends are accrued annually and are recorded in "Net income attributed to the noncontrolling interest" in the consolidated statements of income. The accrued, but not declared, dividends are included in "Noncontrolling interest" in the stockholder's equity in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

NOTE 13: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Legal Matters

The Company is party to various litigation matters and claims arising from its operations. Management believes that the outcome of these proceedings, individually and in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position or results of operations.

Guarantees

The Company provides payment guarantees on financial debt of various CNH European affiliates for approximately \$292,300.

Commitments

At December 31, 2011, the Company has various agreements to extend credit for the following managed portfolios:

	Total Credit Limit	Utilized	Unfunded Commitment	
Private label revolving charge accounts	\$ 3,668,743	\$ 265,177	\$ 3,403,566	
Wholesale and dealer financing	4,930,074	2,866,512	2,063,562	

The private label revolving charge accounts are issued by the Company to retail customers for purchases of parts and services at CNH North America equipment dealers.

NOTE 14: CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Income tax (benefit) provision

for under the equity method

NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO CNH CAPITAL LLC

NET INCOME

Equity in income of consolidated subsidiaries accounted

Net income attributed to the noncontrolling interest

CNH Capital America LLC and New Holland Credit Company, LLC, which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of CNH Capital LLC (the "Guarantor Entities"), guarantee certain indebtedness of CNH Capital LLC. As the guarantees are full, unconditional, and joint and several and as the Guarantor Entities are wholly-owned by CNH Capital LLC, the Company has included the following condensed consolidating financial information as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 and for the three years ended December 31, 2011. The condensed consolidating financial information reflects investments in consolidated subsidiaries under the equity method of accounting.

Condensed Statements of Income for the Year Ended December 31, 2011

	CNH Capital LLC	Guarantor Entities	All Other Subsidiaries	Eliminations	Consolidated
REVENUES					
Interest income on retail and other notes					
and finance leases	\$	\$ 35,929	\$ 418,945	\$	\$ 454,874
Interest income from affiliates		120,011	137,000	(118,067)	138,944
Servicing fee income		72,087	514	(70,854)	1,747
Rental income on operating leases		100,422	63,825		164,247
Other income		29,237	41,950		71,187
Total revenues		357,686	662,234	(188,921)	830,999
EXPENSES					
Interest expense:					
Interest expense to third parties	8,184	(755)	216,760		224,189
Interest expense to affiliates	190	131,869	30,653	(118,067)	44,645
Total interest expense	8,374	131,114	247,413	(118,067)	268,834
Operating expenses:					
Fees charged by affiliates		50,055	83,744	(70,854)	62,945
Provision for credit losses		31,463	1,390		32,853
Other than temporary impairment of retained interests		30	785		815
Depreciation of equipment on operating leases		66,279	44,035		110,314
Other expenses	1	29,213	6,437		35,651
Total operating expenses	1	177,040	136,391	_(70,854)	242,578
Total expenses	8,375	308,154	383,804	(188,921)	511,412
Income (loss) before income taxes and equity in income of consolidated subsidiaries accounted for under the equity method	(9 275)	40.522	279 420		210 597
equity method	(8,375)	49,532	278,430		319,587

(3,282)

205,139

200,046

\$ 200,046

18,830

174,437

205,139

\$ 205,139

102,505

175,925

(1,488)

\$ <u>174,437</u>

(379,576)

(379,576)

\$ (379,576)

118,053

201,534

(1,488)

\$ _200,046

	Condensed Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2011						
	CNH Capital LLC	Guarantor Entities	All Other Subsidiaries	Eliminations	Consolidated		
ASSETS							
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	\$ 306,208	\$ 287,885	\$	\$ 594,093		
Restricted cash		100	767,259		767,359		
Receivables, less allowance for credit losses		834,392	8,552,157		9,386,549		
Retained interests in securitized receivables		6,464	15,103	(4,278)	17,289		
Affiliated accounts and notes receivable	641,566	1,184,507	1,436,347	(3,068,503)	193,917		
Equipment on operating leases, net		377,294	270,323		647,617		
Equipment held for sale		27,106	5,025		32,131		
Investments in consolidated subsidiaries accounted							
for under the equity method	1,203,432	1,567,061		(2,770,493)			
Goodwill and intangible assets		84,720	35,369		120,089		
Other assets	13,588	33,283	95,236		142,107		
TOTAL	\$ <u>1,858,586</u>	\$ <u>4,421,135</u>	\$ <u>11,464,704</u>	\$ <u>(5,843,274</u>)	\$ <u>11,901,151</u>		
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY							
LIABILITIES:							
Short-term debt, including current maturities							
of long-term debt	\$	\$ 160,200	\$ 4,635,835	\$	\$ 4,796,035		
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities	6,777	2,265,212	528,047	(2,349,208)	450,828		
Affiliated debt	9,453	602,960	930,430	(723,573)	819,270		
Long-term debt	650,000	189,331	3,748,442		4,587,773		
Total liabilities	666,230	3,217,703	9,842,754	(3,072,781)	10,653,906		
STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY	1,192,356	1,203,432	1,621,950	(2,770,493)	1,247,245		
TOTAL	\$ <u>1,858,586</u>	\$ <u>4,421,135</u>	\$ <u>11,464,704</u>	\$ <u>(5,843,274</u>)	\$ <u>11,901,151</u>		

Condensed Statements of Cash Flow for the Year Ended December 31, 2011

	CNH Capital LLC	Guarantor Entities	All Other Subsidiaries	Eliminations	Consolidated
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: Net cash from (used in) operating activities	\$ <u>(653,183</u>)	\$ 859,941	\$ 235,827	\$ 22,517	\$ 465,102
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:					
Cost of receivables acquired		(14,454,152)	(15,762,983)	12,180,227	(18,036,908)
Proceeds from sales and collections of receivables		14,525,124	14,871,686	(12,179,172)	17,217,638
Purchase of equipment on operating leases, net		(84,523)	(63,813)	(12,177,172)	(148,336)
Other investing activities		(933)	1,986		1,053
Net cash from (used in) investing activities		(14,484)	(953,124)	1,055	(966,553)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:					
Intercompany activity	3,183	(683,368)	(38,753)	(23,572)	(742,510)
Net increase in indebtedness	650,000	28.832	823,430	(20,072)	1,502,262
Dividends to CNH America LLC		(85,000)			(85,000)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities	653,183	(739,536)	784,677	(23,572)	674,752
INCREASE IN CASH AND					
CASH EQUIVALENTS		105,921	67,380		173,301
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:					
Beginning of year		200,287	220,505		420,792
End of year	\$	\$306,208	\$287.885	\$	\$594.093
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:	 \$	200,287	220,505	 \$	420,79

	Condensed Statements of Income for the Year Ended December 31, 2010						
	CNH Capital LLC	Guarantor Entities	All Other Subsidiaries	Eliminations	Consolidated		
REVENUES							
Interest income on retail and other notes and finance leases	\$	\$ 48.155	\$ 446,604	\$	\$ 494,759		
Interest income from affiliates	Ψ	111,894	99,345	(84,337)	126,902		
Gain on retail, wholesale and revolving credit notes sold		38		(0.,557)	38		
Servicing fee income		68,145	1,419	(66,224)	3,340		
Rental income on operating leases		121,881	41,381		163,262		
Other income		30,695	44,555		75,250		
Total revenues		380,808	633,304	(150,561)	863,551		
EXPENSES							
Interest expense:							
Interest expense to third parties		20,296	212,152		232,448		
Interest expense to affiliates	155	121,999	42,767	_(84,337)	80,584		
Total interest expense	<u>155</u>	142,295	254,919	(84,337)	313,032		
Operating expenses:							
Fees charged by affiliates		50,613	77,075	(66,224)	61,464		
Provision for credit losses		70,981	5,413		76,394		
Other than temporary impairment of retained interests			4,108		4,108		
Depreciation of equipment on operating leases		87,838	30,010		117,848		
Other expenses	1	27,208	<u>15,949</u>		43,158		
Total operating expenses	1	236,640	132,555	(66,224)	302,972		
Total expenses	156	378,935	387,474	(150,561)	616,004		
Income (loss) before income taxes and equity in income of consolidated subsidiaries accounted for under the							
equity method	(156)	1,873	245,830		247,547		
Income tax (benefit) provision	(62)	1,303	83,826		85,067		
Equity in income of consolidated subsidiaries accounted for under the equity method	160,713	160,143		(320,856)			
NET INCOME	160,619	160,713	162,004	(320,856)	162,480		
Net income attributed to the noncontrolling interest			(1,861)		(1,861)		
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO							
CNH CAPITAL LLC	\$ <u>160,619</u>	\$ <u>160,713</u>	\$ <u>160,143</u>	\$ <u>(320,856)</u>	\$ <u>160,619</u>		

	Condensed Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2010					
	CNH Capital LLC	Guarantor Entities	All Other Subsidiaries	Eliminations	Consolidated	
ASSETS						
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	\$ 200,287	\$ 220,505	\$	\$ 420,792	
Restricted cash		100	773,154		773,254	
Receivables, less allowance for credit losses		928,022	7,699,191		8,627,213	
Retained interests in securitized receivables		19,641	21,495	(3,222)	37,914	
Affiliated accounts and notes receivable	285	955,399	1,208,725	(2,030,990)	133,419	
Equipment on operating leases, net		359,050	254,843		613,893	
Equipment held for sale		33,132	13,264		46,396	
Investments in consolidated subsidiaries accounted						
for under the equity method	1,100,219	1,408,487		(2,508,706)		
Goodwill and intangible assets		84,656	36,368		121,024	
Other assets	19		159,255	(49,690)	109,584	
TOTAL	\$ <u>1,100,523</u>	\$ <u>3,988,774</u>	\$ <u>10,386,800</u>	\$ <u>(4,592,608</u>)	\$ <u>10,883,489</u>	
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY						
LIABILITIES:						
Short-term debt, including current maturities						
of long-term debt	\$	\$ 141,563	\$ 3,734,369	\$	\$ 3,875,932	
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities	18	1,281,528	351,271	(1,383,901)	248,916	
Affiliated debt	6,269	1,286,329	974,510	(700,001)	1,567,107	
Long-term debt		179,135	3,864,762		4,043,897	
Total liabilities	6,287	2,888,555	8,924,912	(2,083,902)	9,735,852	
STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY	1,094,236	1,100,219	1,461,888	(2,508,706)	1,147,637	
TOTAL	\$ <u>1,100,523</u>	\$ <u>3,988,774</u>	\$ <u>10,386,800</u>	\$ <u>(4,592,608</u>)	\$ <u>10,883,489</u>	

Condensed Statements of Cash Flow for the Year Ended December 31, 2010

	CNH Capital LLC	Guarantor Entities	All Other Subsidiaries	Eliminations	Consolidated
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: Net cash from (used in) operating activities	\$ <u>(155</u>)	\$ 692,810	\$ (275,287)	\$(60,341)	\$357,027
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:					
Cost of receivables acquired		(12,375,373)	(13,766,266)	10,407,997	(15,733,642)
Proceeds from sales and collections of receivables		12,318,165	13,545,171	(10,407,997)	15,455,339
Decrease (increase) in restricted cash		1,992	(148,340)		(146,348)
Purchase (disposal) of equipment on operating leases, net		14,365	(145,406)		(131,041)
Other investing activities		(1,199)			(1,199)
Net cash from (used in) investing activities		(42,050)	(514,841)		(556,891)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:					
Intercompany activity	155	(314,591)	(220,583)	(20,931)	(555,950)
Net increase in indebtedness		4,870	1,068,721	`	1,073,591
Issuance of common stock			1	(1)	
Redemption of paid in capital			(81,273)	81,273	
Dividends to CNH America LLC		(295,000)			(295,000)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities	155	(604,721)	766,866	60,341	222,641
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS		46,039	(23,262)		22,777
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: Beginning of year		154,248	243,767		398,015
End of year	\$	\$200,287	\$ 220,505	\$	\$ 420,792

	Condensed Statements of Income for the Year Ended December 31, 2009					
	CNH Capital LLC	Guarantor Entities	All Other Subsidiaries	Eliminations	Consolidated	
REVENUES						
Interest income on retail and other notes						
and finance leases	\$	\$ 82,432	\$ 153,805	\$	\$ 236,237	
Interest income from affiliates Gain on retail, wholesale and revolving credit notes sold		48,310	55,174	(47,984)	55,500	
Servicing fee income		(18,326) 72,806	165,787 9,515	(24,380)	147,461 57,941	
Rental income on operating leases		123,942	31,909	(24,380)	155,851	
Other income		27,010	22,200		49,210	
Total revenues		336,174	438,390	(72,364)	702,200	
EXPENSES						
Interest expense:						
Interest expense to third parties		41,657	35,911		77,568	
Interest expense to affiliates	110	105,731	44,707	(47,984)	102,564	
Total interest expense	110	147,388	80,618	(47,984)	180,132	
Operating expenses:						
Fees charged by affiliates		55,769	25,803	(24,380)	57,192	
Provision for credit losses		43,255	45,687		88,942	
Other than temporary impairment of retained interests			37,468		37,468	
Depreciation of equipment on operating leases		93,777	22,392		116,169	
Other expenses	1	40,642	13,635		54,278	
Total operating expenses	1	233,443	144,985	(24,380)	354,049	
Total expenses	111	380,831	225,603	_(72,364)	534,181	
Income (loss) before income taxes and equity in income of consolidated subsidiaries accounted for under the						
equity method	(111)	(44,657)	212,787		168,019	
Income tax (benefit) provision	(48)	(23,094)	75,443		52,301	
Equity in income of consolidated subsidiaries accounted	` /	. , ,				
for under the equity method	113,339	134,902		(248,241)		
NET INCOME	113,276	113,339	137,344	(248,241)	115,718	
Net income attributed to the noncontrolling interest			(2,442)		(2,442)	
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO						
CNH CAPITAL LLC	\$ <u>113,276</u>	\$ <u>113,339</u>	\$ <u>134,902</u>	<u>\$ (248,241)</u>	\$ <u>113,276</u>	

Condensed Statements of Cash Flow for the Year Ended December 31, 2009
--

	CNH Capital LLC	Guarantor Entities	All Other Subsidiaries	Eliminations	Consolidated
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: Net cash from (used in) operating activities	\$(107)	\$ 497,582	\$ (376,800)	\$ 85,161	\$205,836
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: Cost of receivables acquired Proceeds from sales and collections of receivables Purchase of equipment on operating leases, net Other investing activities	 	(10,815,097) 11,311,608 (83,538) (45,423)	(11,787,708) 13,320,491 (42,277) 43,988	9,015,698 (9,015,698) 	(13,587,107) 15,616,401 (125,815) (1,435)
Net cash from (used in) investing activities		367,550	1,534,494		1,902,044
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: Intercompany activity Net increase (decrease) in indebtedness Issuance of common stock Dividends to CNH America LLC Net cash from (used in) financing activities	107 107	(717,462) 12,335 (150,000) (855,127)	(279,867) (664,017) 4,759 ————————————————————————————————————	(80,402) (4,759) (85,161)	(1,077,624) (651,682) (150,000) (1,879,306)
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS		10,005	218,569		228,574
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: Beginning of year		144,243	25,198		169,441
End of year	\$ <u></u>	\$154,248	\$ <u>243,767</u>	\$	\$ <u>398,015</u>

NOTE 15: SUPPLEMENTAL QUARTERLY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

	For the Year Ended December 31, 2011					
	First Second Quarter Quarter		Third Quarter	Fourth Quarter	Fiscal Year	
Revenues	\$ 205,822	\$ 207,683	\$ 207,299	\$ 210,195	\$ 830,999	
Interest expense	69,990	69,316	63,808	65,720	268,834	
Operating expenses	51,347	59,468	60,375	71,388	242,578	
Income tax provision	31,252	28,252	30,259	28,290	118,053	
Net income attributable to the noncontrolling						
interest	<u>411</u>	<u>394</u>	<u>295</u>	<u>388</u>	1,488	
Net income attributable to CNH Capital LLC	\$ <u>52,822</u>	\$ <u>50,253</u>	\$ <u>52,562</u>	\$ <u>44,409</u>	\$ <u>200,046</u>	

	For the Year Ended December 31, 2010						
	First Quarter	Second Quarter	Third Quarter	Fourth Quarter	Fiscal Year		
Revenues	\$ 213,095	\$ 212,808	\$ 218,781	\$ 218,867	\$ 863,551		
Interest expense	80,408	79,109	78,705	74,810	313,032		
Operating expenses	75,968	96,515	65,782	64,707	302,972		
Income tax provision	23,747	12,369	15,915	33,036	85,067		
Net income attributable to the noncontrolling							
interest	570	421	414	<u>456</u>	<u>1,861</u>		
Net income attributable to CNH Capital LLC	\$ <u>32,402</u>	\$ <u>24,394</u>	\$ <u>57,965</u>	\$ <u>45,858</u>	\$ <u>160,619</u>		

NOTE 16: RETROSPECTIVE ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Under a registration rights agreement executed in connection with the November 2011 private offering of \$500 million in aggregate principal amount of its 6.250% notes described in Note 7, the Company is required to file a registration statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission with respect to an offer to exchange such notes for publicly registered notes. Therefore, the Company has begun to follow U.S. GAAP applicable to public companies as defined by the applicable accounting standards and related Securities and Exchange Commission regulations. As a result, the Company retrospectively adopted the following accounting policies in these consolidated financial statements.

Condensed Consolidating Financial Information

The disclosure requirements related to financial statements of guarantors and issuers of guaranteed securities registered or being registered was applied to all periods presented (See Note 14).

Income Tax Accounting

The Company adopted the accounting standards that require the entity to calculate its tax provision on the separate return basis as if the entity had not been eligible to be included in a consolidated tax return with its parent. Previously, the Company's subsidiaries that were structured as limited liability companies did not record an income tax provision. This accounting methodology has been applied to the consolidated financial statements and related disclosures for all periods presented.

Comprehensive Income

As indicated in "Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies", the Company has adopted new accounting guidance in 2011 on the presentation of comprehensive income. This has resulted in the Company presenting a separate statement of comprehensive income for all periods presented.

NOTE 17: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated by management through March 29, 2012, the date of issuance of these financial statements.